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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Pam Dever 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
To provide an appropriation for veterans’ spouses & dependents burial fees at the veterans’ 
cemetery. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att#1 – Sen Marcellais, Att#2-Jim Nelson, Att#3-Mark 
Landis, Att# 4-Robert Becklund 

 
Chairman Davison: Let’s open SB2195. 
 
Sen Marcellais, Dist 9, Belcourt.: I am here in support of SB2195. (see att#1)  
 
Chairman Davison: Any questions? More in support?  
 
Jim Nelson: I am here in support of this bill. (see att#2) I stand for questions. (6.00) 
 
Chairman Davison: In Sen Marcellais testimony it has $550 to be waived. Is that the cost? 
 
Jim:  The Veteran is buried free. That is the reopening fee if a spouse dies or dependent 
who is buried in the veteran’s plot. (6.46)  
 
Sen. Shawn Vedaa: Can you tell me the difference between this cemetery and the new 
national one in Fargo. Is anyone qualified to be buried there? 
 
Jim: Any veteran or spouse or dependent. They have no fee in Fargo. 
 
Sen. Shawn Vedaa: Why was the Fargo one built? 
 
Jim: There is a difference between a federal and a state cemetery. Ours is state and Fargo 
is federal. (8.18) Whole different world. 
 
Chairman Davison: More in support? 
 
Mark Landis, Veterans Service Officer, Burleigh County: I am the president of the 
Professional Veterans Advocates of North Dakota. I come here in support of SB2195. (see 
att#3) (10.00-11.38) I stand for questions. 
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Chairman Davison: Any more in support? Agency testimony.  
 
Brigadier General Robert Becklund, North Dakota National Guard: I am here in a neutral 
position to provide information to the committee on SB2195. (see att#4) We do not think 
$168,000 will be enough as stated in this bill. We have $14,900.00 funds of prepaid money 
in our fund. Standing Rock just got a grant to build an all nation veterans cemetery. (14.00) I 
will take questions. 
 
Sen. Erin Oban: Do you have a breakdown of the $166,000, $196,000 are dependents vs 
spouses? 
 
General Becklund: Spouses and dependents are covered in Fargo cemetery.  
 
Sen. Shawn Vedaa: Thank you for your service. I noticed we have a free cemetery in Fargo. 
Could this bill loose families who would go to Fargo instead of ours? We have a beautiful 
vets cemetery here.  
 
General Becklund: We have done some analysis and we do not feel there will be a major 
impact here. The $550 may make a difference but we don’t feel much. (17.41) 
 
Sen. Erin Oban: Does that $550 cover the cost? 
 
General Becklund: That is the opening and closing cost. We don’t make any money. 
 
Sen. Erin Oban: Do you know when that rate was last increased? 
 
General Becklund: Not sure. It started out at $200 then went up to $300. As things go I 
expect that rate to increase to keep up with labor rates. 
 
Sen. Erin Oban: Do we have to authorize this? 
 
General Becklund: I believe so. I think our special funds need to be appropriated. (18.45) 
 
Sen. Shawn Vedaa: In 1989 when I came into the guard, I remember talk about the 
cemetery. How does the burial work? 
 
General Becklund: We don’t do services out there. No religious, so just burial. We do the 
military honors, present the flag to family. If you earned a rifle volley, we do that. May be up 
to 21-gun salute. There is a short graveyard ceremony. We did 80 funerals a month. 
 
Sen. Shawn Vedaa: Are spouses buried next to each other? 
 
General Becklund: I think there are options. On top of each other. Spouses have their 
information on the other side of monument. 
 
Chairman Davison: Any more testimony?  Any opposing testimony? Hearing is closed. Sen 
Marcellais, do you know why there is no fiscal note? 
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Sen. Richard Marcellais: This was from two sessions ago and this was the cost. It is an 
estimate. I just made a trip to Arlington Cemetery and they have over 200,000 graves. They 
are buying more land. There are 20-30 veterans buried a day out there. It is free to vet and 
spouse and dependents. Stand Rock is a federal cemetery. (22.49) Fargo is still in ground 
breaking mode. 
 
Sen. Shawn Vedaa: What is a qualifying dependent? 
 
Sen. Richard Marcellais: Any immediate dependents. No age limit. 
 
Chairman Davison: General, could you come back up? Do you know why there is no fiscal 
note on this bill? 
 
General Becklund: We did not introduce this bill. This bill would give us an additional 
$168,000 off of our account. I believe this is driving a fiscal note. 
 
Chairman Davison: Thank you.  We will hold this for now and get an answer on fiscal note. 
 
Adjourned 
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk Signature : Pam Dever 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
To provide an appropriation for veterans’ spouses & dependents burial fees at the veterans’ 
cemetery. 
 

Minutes:                                                  Att #1- Sen. Shawn Vedaa:  

 
Chairman Davison: Please look at SB2195.  
 
Sen. Shawn Vedaa: After talking to General Becklund, he mentioned that $210,000 was not 
reality and it should be more. $250,000 is better. I put in an amendment to on page, line that 
has $160,000 with $250,000. Amendment is 19.0933.01001. (see att #1) 
 
Sen. Shawn Vedaa: I move a DO PASS on the amendment.     Vice Chair Meyer: I second. 
 
Chairman Davison: We are adding additional people so adding more funds was right. 
Take the roll:   YES  --  7      NO  --  0     -0- absent.  AMENDMENT PASSED 
 
Sen. Kristin Roers: I move a DO PASS as AMENDED and rerefer to appropriations 
Sen. Shawn Vedaa: I second. 
 
Chairman Davison: Any discussion?  Take the roll:  YES  --  7      NO  --  0   -0- absent 
 PASSED as AMENDED and REFERER to APPROPRIATIONS   
Sen. Richard Marcellais will carry when it comes back from approps. 
 
 



19.0933.01001 
Title.02000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Vedaa 

January 18, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2195 

Page 1, line 5, replace "$160,000" with "$250,000" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0933.01001 
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2195: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Sen. Davison, Chairman) 

recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends 
DO PASS (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2195 was placed 
on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 5, replace "$160,000" with "$250,000" 
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19th DAY THURSDAY, JANUARY 31, 2019 355 

JOURNAL OF THE SENATE 

Sixty-sixth Legislative Assembly 

* * * * * 

Bismarck, January 31, 2019 
The Senate convened at 1 :00 p.m., with President Sanford presiding. 

The prayer was offered by Pastor Bob Weiss, First Baptist Church, Bismarck. 

The roll was called and all members were present except Senator Robinson. 

A quorum was declared by the President. 

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS 
SB 2045: SEN. OBAN (Government and Veterans Affairs Committee) MOVED that the 
amendments on SJ page 342 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO 
PASS, which motion prevailed on a voice vote. 

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS 
SB 2195: SEN. MARCELLAIS (Government and Veterans Affairs Committee) MOVED 
that the amendments on SJ page 347 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order 
with DO PASS, which motion prevailed on a voice vote. 

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS 
SB 2288: SEN. KANNIANEN (Finance and Taxation Committee) MOVED that the 
amendments on SJ pages 349-350 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order 
with DO NOT PASS, which motion prevailed on a voice vote. 

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS 
SB 2327: SEN. ANDERSON (Human Services Committee) MOVED that the amendments 
on SJ page 350 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO PASS, which 
motion prevailed on a voice vote. 

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS 
SB 2193: SEN. DOTZENROD (Finance and Taxation Committee) MOVED that the 
amendments on SJ pages 345-347 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order 
with DO PASS, which motion prevailed on a voice vote. 

� 

MOTION 
____ SEN. KLEIN MOVED that SB 2195 be rereferred to the Appropriations Committee, which 

motion prevailed. Pursuant to Sen. Klein's motion, SB 2195 was rereferred. 

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS 
SB 2192: SEN. DOTZENROD (Finance and Taxation Committee) MOVED that the 
amendments on SJ pages 343-345 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order 
with DO PASS, which motion prevailed on a voice vote. 

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS 
SB 2290: SEN. ANDERSON (Human Services Committee) MOVED that the amendments 
on SJ page 350 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO PASS, which 
motion prevailed on a voice vote. 

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS 
SB 2247: SEN. HOGAN (Human Services Committee) MOVED that the amendments on 
SJ pages 348-349 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO PASS, 
which motion prevailed on a voice vote. 

CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENTS 
SB 2243: SEN. 0. LARSEN (Human Services Committee) MOVED that the amendments 
on SJ page 348 be adopted and then be placed on the Eleventh order with DO PASS, which 
motion prevailed on a voice vote. 
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2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 
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2/8/2019 

Job # 32457 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Rose Laning and Alicia Larsgaard 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for veterans' spouses and dependents burial 
fees at the veterans' cemetery. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony Attached # 1 – 4. 

 
Legislative Council: Levi Kinnischtzke  
OMB: Becky Deichert 
 
Chairman Holmberg: Called the committee to order on SB 2195. The bill came from GVA.  
 
Senator Marcellais, District 9, Rolette County 
Testimony in support of SB 2195 - Attached # 1. 
 
Jim Nelson, ND Veterans Legislative Council  
Testimony in support of SB 2195 - Attached - # 2. 
 
Senator Bekkedahl: Your testimony talks about the spouses but the bill talks about eligible 
dependents as well. Do you have any feelings on the opportunities of dependents? 
 
Jim Nelson: I would include them because there are special requirements for burial and I 
would stand with the same recommendation. 
 
Senator Dever: If I precede, my wife has no expenses, but if she precedes, then, as the 
veteran, I’m the one who has those expenses. If I die first, the government is paying for the 
expenses of my burial, correct? If she dies first, then I’m paying the expenses. 
 
Jim Nelson: That is correct.  
 
Mark Landis, Burleigh County Veterans Service Officer 
Testimony in support of SB 2195 - Attached # 3. 
 
Senator Dever: Could you just tell us the qualifications for a dependent to be buried in the 
cemetery as well.  
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Mark Landis: The dependents are allowed to be buried there.  The children prior to majority 
age are also.  
 
Brigadier General Robert Becklund, Deputy Adjutant General, North Dakota National 
Guard: 
Testimony in support of SB 2195 - Attached # 4. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: That is some new information regarding the federal cemeteries.  
 
Senator Hogue: Honor guard folks – do dependents have that honor guard and do those 
folks go on state active duty or is that part of their job allocation? What is their status when 
they do that? 
 
Brigadier Becklund:  The dependents don’t get honor guard unless they were a member of 
the military themselves. As far as the National Guard goes, we have a team. Honor guard is 
an army team. Those are done on inactive duty training time.  
 
Senator Mathern: I have a question regarding the refund. Are there people who would like 
to pay this? I am wondering why you wouldn’t permit it or maybe even direct it to the non-
profit organization. Some families might actually like to pay this. I am wondering why it would 
be an automatic refund. 
 
Brigadier Becklund: I think this is the fiscally responsible policy right now. We do have a 
viable foundation set up for the cemetery. We do accept donations and many families do 
contribute even though their burials are paid for, even for the member. Following the 
internment ceremonies there are many cards with cash money donations. I would suspect 
that most people would donate their prepaid funds. However, having a policy like this is nice 
just in case they don’t.   
 
Senator Robinson: You mentioned the foundation. What is the asset base in foundation? 
You are doing internments year round, correct?  
 
Brigadier Becklund: The foundation has been set up since the cemetery was founded.  It 
has been fundraising ever since. We have about $7M. The foundation is contributing to the 
maintenance of the cemetery. The internments are year round.  We had a record year. There 
was about 70 in one month which was the high. The average is 40-50 a month.  
 
Senator Robinson: How many internments have we had?  
 
Brigadier Becklund: We have had about 8000. 
 
Senator Dever: I was curious about the designation of the National Cemetery for Fargo and 
Standing Rock. The one south of Mandan is a State cemetery that receives federal dollars 
but operates under the requirements of the federal government because of those dollars 
regarding dependents and other things, correct?   
 
Brigadier Becklund: It’s a state cemetery, but we get grant funding from the federal 
government. At the end of the day it is a State cemetery. The ones in Fargo and Standing 
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Rock are federal cemeteries. That is why the spouses there would be buried at federal 
expense. 
 
Senator Dever: If this had that designation, this wouldn’t be an issue.  
 
Brigadier Becklund: That is correct. The cemetery at Fargo will be much smaller than the 
one we have here. I am not sure about the one at Standing Rock. We do not see much of an 
issue there as far as competition other than equity. Many people might want their veteran 
buried close to where they live.  
 
Senator Dever: It’s beautiful. It almost makes me look forward to it.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB 2195. 
 
Senator Mathern: Moved a Do Pass on SB 2195. 
 
Senator Robinson: Seconded the motion.  

 
A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes:__13_   No:__0__   Absent:__1_.  

 
Motion Carried. 

  
The bill goes back to the GVA committee and Senator Marcellais will carry the bill.  
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2195, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman) 

recommends DO PASS (13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). 
Engrossed SB 2195 was placed on the Eleventh order on the calendar. 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
Fort Union Room, State Capitol 

SB 2195 
3/1/2019 

33049 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Carmen Hart 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
To provide an appropriation for veterans’ spouses and dependents burial fees at the 
veterans’ cemetery 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachments 1-7 

 
Chairman Kasper opened the hearing on SB 2195. 
 
Senator Richard Marcellais appeared in support.  Attachment 1.  (1:00-2:32) 
 
Vice Chair Steiner:  What is the definition of eligible dependent? 
 
Senator Marcellais:  I was told it was any disabled child that lives with the parents up until 
their death.   
 
Rep. Rohr:   Up to this point, it has been out of pocket expense? 
 
Senator Marcellais:  I understand they do have funding that has already been deposited for 
procedural burials. 
 
Rep. Rohr:  Is there another fund that would be paying for this?  Which fund is it? 
 
Senator Marcellais:  They do have a fund separate from what has been paid already.  I 
have heard they have $7 million in that fund.  I don’t think $550 is too bad. 
 
Rep. Rohr:  This is an appropriation of the $250,000 coming out of the state budget?  
 
Chairman Kasper:  It is the general fund.  
 
Senator Marcellais:  It would be a fund that they wouldn’t have any more if they didn’t pay 
the $550.  It would be waived.  The Adjutant General’s Office could probably answer some 
of those questions about their budget.  In the hearing in appropriations, they mentioned there 
was $7 million in the cemetery fund.   
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Rep. Schauer:  Can you explain the impact that a spouse has on a veteran. 
 
Senator Marcellais:  When I was in Vietnam for a year, I can imagine what my wife was 
going through.  It was mentioned at the hearing in the senate that you never see the spouse 
in these parades.  It is always the veteran.  I feel that it is time for us to recognize our spouses. 
 
Mr. Jim Nelson, Legislative Director for ND Veterans’ Legislative Council, appeared.  
Attachment 2.  (6:15-9:00) 
 
Rep. Karls:  Has any thought been given to the spouse who already has paid the $550? 
 
Mr. Nelson:  I don’t have that answer, but someone else here does. 
 
Mark Landis, Burleigh County Veterans’ Service Officer, appeared in support.  
Attachment 3.  (9:51-11:44) 
 
Neutral  
 
Brigadier General Robert Becklund, Deputy Adjutant General for the ND National 
Guard, appeared in a neutral position.  Attachment 4.  (12:10-15:16) 
 
Rep. Laning:  Senator Marcellais referenced a $7 million fund.  That would not be for these 
burial expenses?  The additional funding of $250,000 is what you are looking for to cover 
these burial expenses? 
 
General Becklund:  The ND national guard cemetery foundation was created about the 
same time the cemetery was created, and it has been raising money right along to provide 
for the operations of the cemetery.  This is quite independent of that.  This is your general 
fund monies that would be added into the Office of the Adjutant General’s general funds 
accounts for the sole purpose of covering the burials for the spouses. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  Is the burial fee for the veteran currently paid by a general fund 
appropriation or by other foundation earnings? 
 
General Becklund:  The current $550 is paid by the families.  Those are private funds that 
come in and paid directly to the cemetery to cover that. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  I believe we do not charge for the veterans to be buried, only for the 
spouses.  I am talking about the part we already pay for.   
 
General Becklund:  The general fund. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  If the salaries of those individuals involved with the burials are currently 
paid by the general fund, presumably they are somewhat subsidized by the $550 that is 
currently being paid on behalf of the spouses.  Is this really the magic number?  
 
General Becklund:  This bill adds $250,000 to this next biennium.  The $550 was our best 
estimate at a cost to actually do a burial.  When the cemetery first started, I think it was $200.  
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Later it went to $300.  Now it is up to $550.  We would expect that the cost would go up over 
time. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  Do you have any data showing how many total individuals are in the 
cemetery, veterans versus spouses, and what is the budget to do that?   
 
General Becklund:  I will have to get back to you on that.  It had been asked if this was 
retroactive.  This is not intended to be retroactive.  
 
Attachment 5 was handed out by the law intern. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  How many veterans have been buried the last three or four years?  How 
many spouses have been buried in that same period of time?  Is this actual cost?  Do you 
have full time employees who are part of the burial committee that digs the graves, etc.?   
 
General Becklund:  We have (five?) full-time people there.  There are some temps too.  In 
Senator Marcellais’ original bill, it was $160,000.  It was based upon previous years’ 
estimates and special funds coming in from private citizens.   
 
Chairman Kasper:  How do you come up with those estimates. 
 
General Becklund:  It is from our budget analyst and our executive director of the cemetery.   
We will get those to you. 
 
Rep. Schauer:  Has there been any discussions to partner with the ND guard foundation on 
this?   
 
General Becklund:  The ND guard foundation has contributed already to the operations and 
maintenance of the foundation for equipment purchases.  They have not funded burials.  
 
Chairman Kasper closed the hearing. 
  
Chairman Kasper:  We are going to wait until we get some data. 
 
Rep. Louser:  We had this bill four years ago.  He gave the statistics on what happened.  It 
is going to be crucial to have the information to present to appropriations assuming we pass 
it.  (23:00-23:37) 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  The law intern handed out a copy of the appropriation bill.  Attachment 
6.  The line item for the veterans’ cemetery with $881,000 for the base line, and it is proposed 
at $972,000. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  I would assume that budget is for the maintenance of the cemetery.  Is 
that correct? 
 
General Becklund:  It is the salaries for the personnel that work there. 
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Chairman Kasper:  You have two sources of funds—general fund for that plus $7 million is 
also subsidizing? 
 
General Becklund:  The effort is to grow that fund to provide continuous support there, but 
we are not quite there yet.  We did receive request of the cemetery for funding for the sprinkler 
system, because that was important last year, and we did provide funds there.   
 
Chairman Kasper:  You should give us information about that foundation and some data on 
where you have been spending the money in the last two or three years. 
 
Attachment 7 was emailed to the committee a little later in the day. 
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Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 
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3/15/2019 

33820 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Carmen Hart 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
To provide an appropriation for veterans’ spouses and dependents burial fees at the 
veterans’ cemetery 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1 

 
Chairman Kasper opened the meeting on 2195. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  Where is the priority list for the state for what we do for veterans?  
Was this on that list, or is there $250,000 we should be spending somewhere else for 
veterans?  That was the struggle I was having on this one.     
 
Vice Chair Steiner:  I thought the money was coming out of a trust fund that they had built 
up to $7 million. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  We were going to look at the copy of the appropriations bill that was 
handed out at the hearing.  The veterans’ cemetery is already proposing to get another 
$91,000 which is more than a 10% increase in their appropriation.  I wonder if some of this 
could be funded that way or not. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  Attachment 1 was handed out. (5:12-6:18) How many spouses were 
they estimating were going to be buried?  
 
Rep. Laning:  163.  It ranges from 130 to 205.   
 
Chairman Kasper:  150 at $550 is about … 
 
Rep. Laning:  $82,500. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  They are wanting $250,000.  
 
Rep. Rohr:  We have to remember it is dependents as well.  
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Rep. Schauer:  I don’t know how we can’t support it.  I would have liked the cemetery people 
to come with some private funds or the foundation people alongside and make it a match.  I 
make a motion for a DO PASS and rerefer to appropriations.  
 
Rep. Hoverson seconded the motion. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  I suspect the $250,000 might change when I get down to appropriations.  
Let them make the decision. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  I think I am going to vote no.  I think the amount is too much.  I would 
be more comfortable if it was a smaller amount.  
 
Chairman Kasper:  What number could you support?   
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  Around $100,000. 
 
Rep. Laning:  They had 205 dependents during the year 2018.  If you took that x $550, you 
would come up with $112,000 some odd dollars.  $100,000 may be on the light side. 
 
Rep. Schauer and Rep. Hoverson withdrew their motion and second. 
 
Chairman Kasper:  Rep. Koppelman is thinking around $125,000 for an amendment. 
 
Rep. Schneider:  Does that cover the biennium?  Don’t we have to double that? 
 
Chairman Kasper:  Yes, that’s right. 
 
Rep. Vetter:  I would be down for $125,000. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  When you look at the testimony received, the bill started out with 
$160,000 based on historical projections.  They have had more in the last couple years.  If 
we approved it at $125,000, I think you would find they would make due and figure out where 
those static costs were and wouldn’t be them running in the red.  I make the motion to 
amend the amount to $125,000. 
 
Rep. Vetter seconded the motion. 
 
Rep. Hoverson:  It seems like we squished them right down to the absolute as if we know 
what the projections are, and we don’t.  I would think they would know better, so would you 
consider going up higher?  If not, I am good with it too. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  Some things to take into account is that they do have a foundation for 
the cemetery.  They have paid out some money, but they are also letting some of the money 
build.  There is also some sort of a trust fund that some of the funding comes from.  I believe 
they should have proposed this with their budget.  Being it is an add on, I want to err on the 
conservative side of things. 
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Rep. Laning:  This is a biennial budget, and the numbers we are talking about with burials 
are annual.  The numbers for the last four years are 190, 188, 191, and 205.  You probably 
have to figure 400 people dying in two years.          
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  According to General Becklund’s testimony, the actual amount 
collected for the 15-17 biennium was $166,000.  The 17-19 biennium they are projecting 
$196,000.   
 
Rep. Schauer:  I support Rep. Koppelman on this.  To raise money for the burial of spouses 
is about as easy as it gets.  For the cemetery foundation to come up with this extra money is 
not going to be difficult to do. 
 
Rep. P. Anderson:  I am going to resist the motion.  I think the powerful appropriations can 
lower the burial cost and put the blame on them. 
 
Rep. Schneider:  I am for the easy and feel good way on this one too. 
 
Voice vote.  Motion carries. 
 
Rep. Vetter made a motion for a DO PASS AS AMENDED and rerefer to appropriations. 
 
Rep. Schauer seconded the motion. 
 
Rep. Laning:  Should the cemetery need it, there is nothing in this bill that prevents them 
from continuing to charge some amount is there? 
 
Chairman Kasper:  No. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  That is a good point.  I think as it was presented to us, this was 
supposed to end the charging for spouses.  It may be prudent for us to add something to the 
bill that says here is an appropriation for this purpose and some sort of language that says 
for the veteran, the spouse, and dependent child provided at no cost.   
 
Chairman Kasper:  I don’t think we want to go that far. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  What happens if they continue to charge $550 for all spouses and 
children?  What is the point of putting this money in then?   
 
Chairman Kasper:  No.  The bill says paying the costs of interring veterans’ spouses and 
dependents who are eligible.  It doesn’t say any other costs. 
 
Rep. B. Koppelman:  Is the way this is worded then going to stop them for charging 
spouses? 
 
Chairman Kasper:  It is not going to stop them.  It could certainly soften the charge.  If the 
average charge is $500 and we are giving 60% of the cost here, then they can choose what 
to do with the rest of it.  Think about it.  It is pretty cheap cost compared to what the average 
family would pay when there is a death. 
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A roll call vote was taken.  12-0, 2 absent.   
 
Rep. Schauer will carry the bill.  
 
 



19.0933.02001 
Title. 03000 

Adopted by the House Government and [) fr 
3 / )', /J� 

Veterans Affairs Committee 
March 15, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2195 

Page 1, line 5, replace "$250,000" with "$125,000" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0933.02001 



Date: .3.. ' I� - I Cj 
Roll Call Vote #: I ' 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. cJ-JCJ ) 

House Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: -----------------------
Recommendation: 

Other Actions: 

D �opt Amendment 
.�Do Pass D Do Not Pass 
D As Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation 
� Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By �
Pf' 

� Seconded By {?---'f: lJ � 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Jim Kasper Rep. Pamela Anderson 
Vice Chair Vicky Steiner Rep. Mary Schneider 
Rep. Jeff Hoverson 
Rep. Craig Johnson ) 
Rep. Daniel Johnston fi h /) ,A_,,(/ 
Rep. Karen Karls 1 rvJA Jµ v 

Rep. Ben Koooelman 1 1J;v-
Rep. Vernon Laning \ }J/V .,,-,,r,ritv--
Rep. Scott Louser V 

A,--,,v 

Rep. Karen Rohr /tr V 

Rep. Austen Schauer 
Rep. Steve Vetter 

No Total 

Absent 

(Yes) ----------- ---------------

Floor Assignment 

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Date: � -/5: -1 j 
Roll Call Vote#: :2.... 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. o2, l) S-
House Government and Veterans Affairs 

D Subcommittee 

Committee 

Amendment LC# or Description: �- :B . {)� ,9 "11� L.u _,./,.eW 
Recommendation: �Adopt Amendment 

D Do Pass D Do Not Pass D Without Committee Recommendation 
D As Amended D Rerefer to Appropriations 
D Place on Consent Calendar 

Other Actions: D Reconsider D 

Motion Made By_«
-#/ 

£. 'i{�seconded By 

Representatives Yes No Representatives 
Chairman Jim Kasper Rep. Pamela Anderson 
Vice Chair Vicky Steiner Rep. Mary Schneider 

Yes 

Reo. Jeff Hoverson I ' I J 0--{,_.f 
Reo. Craia Johnson 
Rep. Daniel Johnston 
Rep. Karen Karls 
Rep. Ben Koppelman 
Reo. Vernon Lanina 
Rep. Scott Louser 
Rep. Karen Rohr 
Rep. Austen Schauer 
Reo. Steve Vetter 

Total 

Absent 

(Yes) 

Floor Assignment 

No 

I J (Ji-"'- ,JI _v ' . 
-.../JI VI � I J I \__ v 

} A -

/ } ,,, h/ � � 
\....,.../'-"' 

;;;
• i�n

i:
y

�
d
;:

m•
� 

4;:;-� 

No 



Date: .,3 -/ S-- I 7 
Roll Call Vote #: 3 

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILURESOLUTION NO. d/ �Ls-J 
House Government and Veterans Affairs 

D Subcommittee 

Amendment LC# or Description: 

·Committee 

-----------------------
Recommendation: 

Other Actions: 

-�dopt Amendment 
E"flo Pass D Do Not Pass 
�s Amended 
D Place on Consent Calendar 
D Reconsider 

D Without Committee Recommendation ;4-- Rerefer to Appropriations 

D 

Motion Made By � U Seconded By vf-¥�� 
Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes No 

Chairman Jim Kasper 'X. Rep. Pamela Anderson )( 
Vice Chair Vicky Steiner f-t Rep. Mary Schneider ';( 
Rep. Jeff Hoverson 'f.. 
Rep. CraiQ Johnson '-./.. 
Rep. Daniel Johnston 'I-
Rep. Karen Karls � 
Rep. Ben Koppelman 1-... 
Rep. Vernon LaninQ ¥-
Rep. Scott Louser A-
Rep. Karen Rohr Y.. 
Rep. Austen Schauer ><-
Rep. Steve Vetter ',(_ 

Total (Yes) ____ /;L__ No _o_· _____ _ 
Absent 

Floor Assignment ¢2� 
If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent: 



Com Standing Committee Report 
March 15, 2019 2:38PM 

Module ID: h_stcomrep_ 46_007 
Carrier: Schauer 

Insert LC: 19.0933.02001 Title: 03000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2195, as engrossed: Government and Veterans Affairs Committee (Rep. Kasper, 

Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, 
recommends DO PASS and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee 
(12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2195 was 
placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 5, replace "$250,000" with "$125,000" 

Renumber accordingly 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_ 46_007 



  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2019 HOUSE APPROPRIATIONS 
 

SB 2195 

 

 

 

                                                                  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Roughrider Room, State Capitol 

SB 2195 
3/19/2019 

33972 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Risa Bergquist by Caitlin Fleck  

 

 Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for veterans' spouses and dependents burial 

fees at the veterans' cemetery. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
4:30 Chairman Delzer: Called the meeting to order for SB 2195. Representative Kasper is here to 
present the bill.  
 
Representative Kasper: This is an appropriation to fund the burial of spouses in the veterans’ 
cemetery. It came to the committee with an appropriation of 250,000 from the Senate and as we got 
it in front of our committee we reduced it down by 50% and there are other sources of funds. There 
will also be other general expenses, but we wanted to focus on the expenses for the spouses.  
 
Representative Bellew: Did they tell you how much it would cost per spouse? And how many this 
would cover? 
 
Representative Kasper: They did, they figured the cost of 550 dollars per burial per spouse, and 
they gave us a chart that showed the number of spouses that had passed away dating back to 2010 
which was at 125 in 2015 and it was up to 191 in 2015 and at 205 at 2018. That was there estimate. 
 
Chairman Delzer: Did you ask them what they charge right now? And will they continue to charge or 
would this take care of the whole charge? 
 
Representative Kasper: I don’t know if it will take care of the whole charge because we don’t know 
how many will pass away in the next year or 2. They do charge right now and I think it was $550 per 
spouse. They have burial fees that vary from 0-762 dollars at the state veteran’s cemetery. Generally 
speaking, a private cemetery in ND charges in excess of the $550, and their fee is set at this number.   
 
Chairman Delzer: So this is supposed to replace that charge? 
 
Representative Kasper: All or part of it.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Do you remember how many times we have heard this before? 
 
Representative Kasper: It has been more than once.  
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Representative Brandenburg: The veteran’s cemetery is supposed to be a place for vets, but if the 
family member wants to be there, it is a privilege and I don’t think we should be paying for this. They 
should have to be paying for it. I would struggle with this because for me this is sacred ground for the 
vets, and if the family members want to be there they should have to pay a cost for it.  
 
Representative Kasper: The committee struggled with the number, currently there is $14,900 
prepaid fees for future burials of spouses already there. There is a $7million memorial fund for the 
entire cemetery foundation. We felt there are other sources to cover those other expenses.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Representative Vigesaa or Representative Brandenburg, have you guys had the 
discussion on how much we have in the budget for the veteran’s cemetery? 
 
 Representative Vigesaa: We have had this discussion on this bill, and this is what we talked about 
as well.  
 
Chairman Delzer: How much are we currently contributing in the budget? 
 
Representative Brandenburg: I think that it is somewhere around 5-600,000.  
 
 Representative Nathe: I know that they run the veteran’s cemetery closely to how they run the VA 
(veteran’s affairs) cemetery, was there any mention as to what the VA does? Does the VA pay for 
spouses?  
 
Representative Kasper: No that never came up. 
 
Representative Nathe: I know we had this bill last session and we killed it. I can tell you, $550 for 
an opening and closing of a grave is pretty cheap. In Bismarck it is somewhere between 800-1000. 
That is regardless of if it’s a casket or an urn, they charge the same amount.   
 
Brady Larson, Legislative Council: In the current version of this bill we have $972,000.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Can you look at what we had last time?  
 
Mr. Larson: Yes.  
 
Representative Beadle: Last biennium the budget was $881,284 for the Veterans cemetery.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Anything further to add?  
 
Representative Kasper: No that was it.  
 
Meeting closed.  
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 A BILL for an Act to provide and appropriation for veteran’s spouses and dependents burial 
fees at the veteran’s cemetery. 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Delzer: Opened hearing. 
 
Representative Bellew: Motion for a Do Not pass. 
 
Representative Nathe: Second. 
 
Representative Monson: Is there a separate 250,000 that is already going on or is every 
time? 
 
Chairman Delzer: No, this is new, we have never done this before. This is a new section. It 
would sunset at the end of 2 years, and they would have to come back in and ask for it again.  
 
Representative J. Nelson: One thing that I was unclear about, 125,000, if the numbers were 
correct there’s 400 people that have been buried out there. The appropriation wouldn’t cover 
the entire number of people that are buried there. Is it a come first, first served? So you could 
have a situation where somebody is wealthy enough to afford being buried out there but 
because it is available they would qualify? But then somebody that is less wealthy would not? 
 
Chairman Delzer: I think it would be up to the adjutant general to decide how they would 
handle that. I can’t imagine you would ever wait until you were done, I would imagine it would 
be free until they run out of money and then they would start charging. You can’t wait until 
the end of the 2 years and the prorate it.  
 
Representative Nelson: So it would be to your benefit to die early.  
 
Representative Vigesaa: They take the 250,000 and divide it by 550, which would be about 
454 burials over a biennium. This would cover about 200 and some per year. So I think the 
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original request of 250,000 would have covered everybody. There are funds in the veteran’s 
cemetery fund and they probably would have just covered it.  
 
Representative Beadle: The bill was originally introduced in the Senate with 160,000 and the Senate 
committee is what upped it to 250,000.  
 
Chairman Delzer: Further discussion? 
 
Representative Boe: I would think that the 550 dollars isn’t enough to cover those expenses. I think 
this is a sign of the upcoming influx of more burials in the future as we go on for the next decade or 
so.  
 
Representative Nathe: We cover this now I know it’ll be way more expensive in the future when we 
subsidize it. More people are choosing to be buried at the veteran’s cemetery because it is more 
expensive to buy a lot on a private cemetery. It is expensive to pay for that opening and closing or 
800-1000 dollars. It is twice as much for a head stone. These numbers will keep going up significantly 
down the road. If we pass this, I guarantee within a couple of sessions this is going to be much higher.  
 
Chairman Delzer: I certainly think that we have no problem respecting the veteran’s but I’m not sure 
we should go to the point of subsidizing a spousal burial.  
 
A Roll Call vote was taken. Yea: 19 Nay: 2 Absent: 0. Motion passes.  
 
Floor assignment: Representative Bellew  
 
Meting closed.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
To provide an appropriation for veterans’ spouses and dependents burial fees at the 
veterans’ cemetery. 
 

Minutes:                                                  Att # 1 – Al Dohrmann 

 
Present:  Sen. Vedaa (chair), Sen. Elkin, Sen. Marcellais 
                Rep. Schauer (chair), Rep. Karls, Rep. Johnston  
 
Sen. Vedaa: I recall in the hearing, that the original money was lower, so we raised it. We 
were told the original money would not be enough. Does the House have anything to add? 
 
Sen. Richard Marcellais: The initial bill I introduced was $160,000. You make a motion to 
amend it to $250,000. (1.34)  
 
Rep. Schauer: How did you come up with $160,000? 
 
Sen. Richard Marcellais: I introduced this last session, and that is what the cost was at that 
time.  
 
Sen. Vedaa:  We will call someone up to explain. 
 
Al Dohrmann, Major General, National Guard: (2.48) (see att # 1) The cemetery falls under 
me. We projected a cost of $211,000. The time line is going up. One chamber looked at the 
past nine years. That average came to $160,000. The spouses had to track with the vets to 
some extent. We feel our numbers will go up as Korean vets pass and then the Vietnam vets 
are next. We may have a lull in between war conflicts, I guess.  
 
Rep. Karls: This is a two-year appropriation. If we pass the bill with the $125,000 as House 
amended, your department will have to come up with the rest of the money? Or will you pro-
rate it?  
 
Al: At this amount, I project I will be in front of the emergency commission within the first 
quarter of the biennium. The bill right now, would require me to pay and we would have to 
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find that money somewhere. The law requires that we pay. The adjutant general’s office is 
responsible.  
 
Rep. Schauer:  Who has paid this in the past? Has it been from the families? Are there any 
public dollars or from your budget? 
 
Al: I have heard people comment that the workers are already there, so why can’t you just 
do more burials. This is the budgeting process, and we set a fee of $550 fee for eligible 
dependents and spouses. We worked that into our budget. If that revenue source is not 
coming in, then we need another source of revenue to cover it. The fee has covered the cost. 
The fee is part of our base budget. (6.37) 
 
Rep. Schauer: This is a onetime $125,000 allocation to you and your budget. What happens 
if this is not renewed in two years and what happens to those who pre-paid? (7.00) 
 
Al: We are struggling what to do with pre-paid. We would at least make them aware that this 
is available in the next biennium. If you want us to refund, we will do that. There is a 
foundation that is for the veterans’ cemetery. (7.43) The legislature can’t appropriate money 
from that foundation. The foundation already has committed $350,000 for us in the coming 
biennium. That is part of our budget forecast. The governor had $127,000 in their budget for 
cemetery. I think now the package will be $125,000 in general funds for the next biennium to 
support the cemetery. This is a program that you don’t start and then stop. You have a moral 
obligation to keep this going once started. You may want to change the word ‘pay’ to ‘defray’ 
in the bill. That is a suggestion. It may mean a decrease in fee for burial, which is now $550.  
From a policy perspective, if we brought this fee to $200, I bet in three years we would have 
it back to $550. (11.13) 
 
Sen. Vedaa: Sounds like you expect the burial numbers to increase in the next two years. 
Could this be addressed in the next biennium? Could those numbers go down? 
 
Al: Generally, the trend lines go up. That will continue with Vietnam people. Could there be 
a decline in 10-15 years when you have a war gap. Maybe, but there is global war on 
terrorism that has come of age. Those numbers steadily increase. (12.52) 
 
Sen. Richard Marcellais: Do you get any federal money for the cemetery? (13.17) 
 
Al:  Yes. There are federal grants that covered some construction in the past through the 
Veterans’ Affairs. We get $750 from federal VA for burial of vets.  
 
Sen. Richard Marcellais: I am concerned because we have two federal cemeteries coming 
to N.D. and spouses don’t have to pay anything. I think that will hurt the cemetery in Mandan.  
We have a beautiful cemetery in Mandan, don’t get me wrong. I am planning on being buried 
in Mandan cemetery. Cost does not matter to me, but I know there are vets out there that 
cost does matter. (14.34) 
 
Al: Totally agree. This was not in our budget nor the governor’s budget recommendation. We 
did research this time and found that more and more state cemeteries are covering the cost 
of dependents and spouses. From a policy stand point, if this bill passes, I have to have a 
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discussion with OMB and the governor next session to get it in the base budget. The 
discussion will have to include the nationwide trend of covering the cost of spouses and 
dependents. (15.30) 
 
Rep. Schauer:  We understand the need for burial for spouses. But this is one-time 
allocation. If we kick it up more than $125,000, we run the risk of it not passing in the House. 
Also, we need this in your base budget for continuing appropriation. (16.12) How do we do 
that strategically? We have to look at this long term and this is the dilemma.  
 
Sen. Richard Marcellais: Why don’t we just wave it and not consider the money. How’s 
that? 
 
Al:  We learned lots through the process this session. I did not know the federal government 
was waving the cost and this is a movement.  
 
Rep. Schauer:  I do like defraying the cost language. That helps in the process. I want to at 
least get the $125,000 through the House.  
 
Sen. Vedaa:  I like this bill. I would hate to tell a family that we did not have the money to 
bury their spouse. I am holding firm at the $250,000. (18.24) 
 
Rep. Johnston: My concern is that spouses have to go through lots when their spouse 
serves in the military. I do want to send something back to the House that will pass. We 
funded a cactus green house for crying out loud. What is that priority? This is a priority. I 
would be in favor of defraying the cost. (19.09) 
 
Sen. Vedaa:  If this was $1.25 million I would have heart burn, but this is $125,000 and 
veterans’ spouses. I think we need to be at $250,000.  
 
Rep. Schauer:  Do you think that amount will fly in the House? 
 
Sen. Vedaa: Probably not. 
 
Rep. Schauer: That is why we are here. 
 
Rep. Johnston: To clarify, everything flies on your side. 
 
Sen. Vedaa: Let’s think about this and meet again.  Adjourned.  (20.14) 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
To provide an appropriation for veterans’ spouses and dependents burial fees at the 
veterans’ cemetery.  
 

Minutes:                                                  Att # 1 – Sen Vedaa 

 
PRESENT:  Sen. Vedaa (chair), Sen. Elkin, Sen. Marcellais 
          Rep. Schauer (chair), Rep. Karls, 
 Rep. Johnston – Absent 
 
Sen Vedaa: Open conference committee on SB2195. Take attendance.  All present except 
Rep. Johnston. I have an amendment I passed out. (see att # 1) I talked to the committee 
chair of the House last week on this.  
 
Rep. Schauer: The house is touch and go compared to the Senate. I visited with Rep. Delzer 
and Rep. Pollert. We are comfortable with the $125,000 and with the ‘defraying’ language. 
There could be an issue down the road with the $250,000 two years from now because that 
money would be part of the adjutant general’s budget. Will the appropriation add $200,000 
on to that budget? I know we need to take care of now. If we kick it up to $220 which this 
amendment proposes, would that go through on the House side. I would say, no. (2.41) I 
don’t want to have nothing because this is a good bill. We have to be strategic and honest 
and come up with a number for the House.  
 
Rep. Karls: I agree with Rep. Schauer. (3.09) $220,000 would be hard to get through the 
House. We are going from paying to defraying, we are offering a discount on burials until we 
know in two years what are finances will be. 
 
Sen. Elkin:  What number works for the House? 
 
Rep. Schauer:  $150,000. We can go for more, but how much risk do you want to put into it. 
We are guaranteed at $150,000.  
 
Sen. Vedaa: I will ask Sen. Dever to come up. What is your opinion? 
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Sen. Dever, Dist. 32, Bismarck: Another option is you can delay the effective date. $150,000 
is 2/3’s of $225,000. You could apply it for 16 months. Going into the next session, continue 
that. (4.56) 
 
Sen. Vedaa: I would like to try $175,000. Us coming down from our $250 K to $175 K. You 
guys could come up $50 K. Should I have Hugh make the amendment? 
 
Rep. Schauer:  I want this as clean as possible. I don’t know if 16 months is clean or is 
confusing. I don’t know. Is this something that has been done? 
 
Sen. Dever:  We do that all the time. (6.08) If you decide to do $175 K or $225 K, you take 
it to the floor. You just kill the conference committee report not the bill. You come back and 
get a different number.  
 
Rep. Schauer: We don’t want to kill the bill. I feel we need to make a decision. (7.08) How 
would the effective date work? $175 K with 16 months or $150 to 16 months? 
 
Sen. Dever: If you don’t delay it, it is effective from July 1, 2019 to July 1, 2021. If you delay 
it 2/3’s, say the $150, you would be effective March 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021. 
 
Rep. Scheuer: Would that help two years from now as far as budgeting. 
 
Sen. Dever: Two years from now we would consider what it would cost to continue for 24 
months.  
 
Rep. Schauer: Ultimately we want it in the adjutant general budget. We don’t want a onetime 
allocation. We don’t want to hurt his budget, either. (8.40) 
 
Sen. Dever: Everybody in this room like this bill.  
 
Sen. Elkin: Maybe Rep. Schauer can come in again with different number next time. Should 
we play again? 
 
Rep. Karls: I would like to settle this today. Let’s work on the Vedaa amendment. Put in $175 
K instead of $220 K and add an effective date. Leave in ‘defraying’.  
 
Sen. Richard Marcellais: I agree with the $175 K and an effective date. It will give us an 
opportunity to see how effective it will be 16 months and you will have an idea budget wise 
what it will take next session. (10.52) 
 
Rep. Karls: I move the amendment and House recede from amendments and further amend.  
Sen. Richard Marcellais: I second. 
 
Sen. Vedaa: Discussion? Take roll:  YES  --   5     NO  --   0   -1- absent.  
Sen. Vedaa will carry the bill.       Rep. Schauer will carry the bill. 
Done (13.33) 
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Adopted by the Conference Committee 

April 15, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2195 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on page 1162 of the Senate Journal 
and pages 1206 and 1207 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate Bill No. 2195 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 1, line 2, after "cemetery" insert", and to provide an effective date" 

Page 1, line 5, replace "$250,000" with "$175,000" 

Page 1, line 6, replace "paying" with "defraying" 

Page 1, line 8, replace "biennium" with "period" 

Page 1, line 8, replace "July 1, 2019" with "with the effective date of this Act" 

Page 1, after line 8, insert: 

"SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective March 1, 2020." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0933.02003 



2019 SENATE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
ROLL CALL VOTES 

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB2195 as (re) engrossed 

Senate Government and Veterans Affairs Committee Committee 
Action Taken D SENATE accede to House Amendments 

Date: 4/15/2019 
Roll Call Vote#: 1 

D SENATE accede to House Amendments and further amend 
D HOUSE recede from House amendments 
� HOUSE recede from House amendments and amend as follows 

D Unable to agree, recommends that the committee be discharged and a new 
committee be appointed 

Motio n Made by: _R_e �p_._K_a _r _ls _______ Seco nded by: Se n. Ma rce l lais 

Senators 4-11 4-15 Yes No Representatives 
Sen. Vedaa (chair X X X Rep. Schauer (chair) 
Sen. Elkin X X X Rep. Karls 
Sen. Marcellais X X X Rep. Johnston 

Total Senate Vote Total Rep. Vote 

4-11 4-15 

X X 
X X 
X AB 

Vote Count Yes: 5 No: 0 Absent: 1 

Senate Carrier _S_e_n_._V_e_d_a_a ______ House Carrier Rep. Schauer 

Yes 
X 
X 

AB 

LC Number 19.0933 . 02003 of amendment 

No 

LC Number .04000 of engrossment 

Emergency clause added or deleted 

Statement of purpose of amendment 

----------



Com Conference Committee Report 
April 16, 2019 8:01AM 

Module ID: s_cfcomrep_68_001 

Insert LC: 19.0933.02003 
Senate Carrier: Vedaa 

House Carrier: Schauer 

REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE 
SB 2195, as engrossed: Your conference committee (Sens. Vedaa, Elkin, Marcellais and 

Reps. Schauer, Karls, Johnston) recommends that the HOUSE RECEDE from the 
House amendments as printed on SJ page 1162, adopt amendments as follows, and 
place SB 2195 on the Seventh order: 

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on page 1162 of the Senate Journal 
and pages 1206 and 1207 of the House Journal and that Engrossed Senate B i ll No. 2195 be 
amended as follows: 

Page 1, l ine 2, after "cemetery" insert " ,  and to provide an effective date" 

Page 1, l ine 5 ,  replace "$250,000" with "$175,000" 

Page 1, line 6 ,  replace "paying" with "defraying" 

Page 1, line 8 ,  replace "biennium" with "period" 

Page 1, line 8 ,  replace "July 1, 2019" with "with the effective date of this Act" 

Page 1, after l ine 8 ,  insert: 

"SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective March 1,  
2020. "  

Renumber accordingly 

Engrossed SB 2195 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar. 

(1 ) DESK (2) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_cfcomrep_68_001  
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Testimony 

COMMITTEES: 
Education 

Govern ment and Veterans  Affairs 

Senate Bill No. 2 195 

Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

Senator K. Davison, Chairman 

January 1 8, 201 9  

Chairman Davison, members of the Government Veteran Affairs Committee, for the 

record my name is Richard Marcellais, Senator from District 9, of Belcourt I am here today 

to provide testimony on Senate Bill 2195. 

Senate Bill 2 1 95 would allow for the spouse or eligible dependents burial fees of $550. 00 to be 

waved. 

The North Dakota Veterans Cemetery was established by an act of the 2989 Legislative 

Assembly and is operated by the Office of the Adjutant General of North Dakota. 

Any Veteran wartime or peacetime service is eligible for burial in the North Dakota Veterans 

Cemetery. Present and past National Guard members and present and past Army, Air Force, 

Navy, Marine Corps and Coast Guard Reserve Forces. 

There is no cost to the Veteran for burial. If a spouse or eligible dependent is buried the fee is 

$550. 

In honor of all those who have served & especially to those Veterans who have protected our 

countries freedoms, may they rest in peace. 

I believe that our North Dakota Veterans spouses and dependents are entitled to have their 

burial fees of $550 should be waved. 

Thank You very much for the opportunity to appear in support of Senate Bill 2195. If there are 

any questions I will try and answer them. 
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SB-2195 open ing a grave for a spouse a nd e l ig ib le  dependents N DVC 

I was the chap la i n  for the B i sma rck  AMVETS for a few yea rs a nd served as  

the Chap l a i n  fo r the North Dakota Depa rtment of AMVETS. Dur i ng my tenu re as  

Cha p la i n  I attend ma ny bu ria ls at the Vete ra ns Cemetery a nd others a round the 

B isma rck Mandan a rea .  

r�/ 

I sa me caskets and  bu ria l u rns  that wou ld be the envy of a nyone, a nd bu r ia l 

u rns  a nd caskets that broke my hea rt .  I wi l l  g ive a few exam ples .  I n  most 

i nsta nces the caskets a re genera l re lat ively modest, the envia b le  ones a re some 

not that common .  Once i n  a wh i le  you wi l l  see some that speak vo l umes to the 

financ i a l  status of the deceased a nd h is o r  he r  fam i ly .  I w i l l  never forget the fi rst 

t ime I saw a ca rdboard casket. It was pa i nfu l ly obviou s  that th i s  fam i ly th i s  was a l l  

they cou ld afford . When it comes t o  cremat ion u rns, I have seen brown paper 

bags, a coffee can, n umerous u rns g iven by the fu nera l home, o ne i n  pa rt icu la r, 

had a photo copied p ictu re of the loved one ta pe to the conta i ne r. Wh i l e  there 

may be other  reasons for the use of these conta i ne rs, the obvious reason to me is  

the just ca n't afford a ny better. 

Th is b i l l  wou ld ,  a long with he lp i ng a l l  veterans, wou ld be espec ia l ly 

we lcomed by those of low i ncome  o r  other  ha rdsh i ps .  Wh i l e  550 may not seem 

l i ke much to most of us, there a re many vetera ns' fam i l ies  that this he l p  m ight 

ma ke the d iffe rence between a coffee ca n and  a n ice s imp le  u rn .  

Spea king with Pam at  the Cemetery she to ld  me  of  a s ituat ion cu rrently she  

has .  A veteran is bu ried at  the  cemetery cu rre ntly a nd  the spouse passed away i n  

a d ifferent state . Fam i ly members sent  the a shes a nd death cert ificate to  the  

Cemetery. Pam notified the  fam i ly of  the fee a nd they rep l ied they d id not  have 

the money and  wou ld t ime to ra ise it . That was two months ago .  She a lso 

i nfo rmed me that the new Nationa l  Cemetery in Fa rgo does it for free .  

The Vetera ns Legis lat ive Counc i l  suppo rts th is  b i l l  



The Administrative Committee on Veter­

ans Affairs (ACOV A) is responsible for the or­

ganization, policy, and general administration of 

all veterans' affairs in North Dakota. The Ad­

ministrative Committee is comprised of 1 5  vot­

ing members, each appointed by the Governor, 

representing the five major patriotic veteran or­

ganizations in the state . 

Each year, the Governor 1s to appoint 

one member from a l ist of two names submitted 

by the following North Dakota veteran organiza­

tions :  American Legion, Veterans of Foreign 

Wars, Disabled American Veterans, AMVETS, 

and Vietnam Veterans of America. The ACO­

V A is also comprised of three nonvoting mem­

bers who are to serve in an advisory capacity -

the North Dakota Adjutant General, the Center 

Director of the Federal Veterans Affairs, and the 

Executive Director of Job Service of North Da­

kota. The Governor also appoints the ACOVA's  

Chairman and Secretary. 

The ACOV A has several activities they 

monitor on behalf of the Governor and the 

state ' s  veterans. 

North Dakota Veterans Home: 

The ACOV A appoints a seven member govern­

ing board for administration of the North Dakota 

Veterans Home located in Lisbon, ND. It assists 

in creating the management and not in the day to 

day management of the Veterans Home. 

Post War Trust Fund : 

The veterans' postwar trust fund (PWTF) i s  a 

permanent trust fund of the state of North Dako­

ta and consists of moneys transferred or credited 

to the fund under NDCC 3 7- 1 4- 1 4  and other 

laws. All income received from investments is to 

be util ized only for programs of benefit and ser­

vice to veterans or their dependents, and all in­

come earned in a biennium is appropriated to the 

(ACOV A) on a continuing basis .  

ND Department of Veterans Affairs : 

The committee shall appoint the commissioner 

of the department of veterans' affairs . The com­

missioner of veterans '  affairs shall serve as the 

executive secretary for the subcommittee . The 

commissioner has no vote in the affairs of the 

sub-committee. 

Who We Are 

and What We 

do for Veterans 



FIVE ND Patriotic Organizations 

3 1 ,000 Members Statewide 

5,456,000 Members Nationwide 

What is the difference between the 

NDVLC and the ACOV A? The acronym 

NDVLC stands for the North Dakota Veterans 

Legislative Council and 1s a Non­

Governmental Counci l  comprised of the five 

principal veteran organizations in the state of 

North Dakota. Their purpose i s  to discuss and 

develop a unified consensus on veteran issues .  

ACOV A stands for the Administrative Com­

mittee on Veterans Affairs which is responsi­

ble for the organization, policy, and general 

administration of all veterans'  affairs in North 

Dakota. 

The ND Veterans Legislative Council 

i s  made up of three members from each of the 

following five ND Veterans '  Patriotic Organi­

zations; The American Legion, Veterans of 

Foreign Wars, Disabled American Veterans, 

AMVETS, and the Vietnam Veterans of 

America. 

ND Disabled American Veterans 
5, 000 North Dakota Members, 1 1  Local Chapters 

1 . 2  Million Members Nationwide 

ND Veterans of Foreign Wars 
7, 715  North Dakota Members, 54 Local Posts 

1. ?Million Members Nationwide 

The NDVLC was establi shed to bring 

veterans organizations together in a united 

effort on behalf of all veterans and depend­

ents. It is meant to provide a practical means 

through which the Veterans organizations 

throughout the state may effectively contrib­

ute to the betterment of all veterans .  

The three major responsibil ities of the 

Legislative Council are to sponsor and moni­

tor legislation that affects veterans and their 

dependents, monitor all general programs for 

veterans including hospital benefits, employ­

ment programs, social programs and final ly to 

establish a system of public relations for vet­

erans. 

No member of the Legislative Council 

may hold concurrent membership on the Ad­

ministrative Committee on Veterans Affairs . 

The three representatives from each Veterans 

organization shal l be the Department 

,, , , . , _ ,," .:,,.,,,,•· 

ND A merican Veterans 
2, 800 North Dakota Members, 1 4  Local Posts 

290, 000 Members Nationwide 

ND Dept. of the American Legion 
15, 050 North Dakota Members, 2 15  Local Posts 

2. 2 Million Members Nationwide 

Commander, the Department Adj utant, and one 

other representative. Each member has one 

vote . The office of president, vice-president, 

and secretary/treasurer are elected from within 

these voting members . 

The members are volunteers and do not 

receive salaries for performing their duties as 

outlined in the organizations by-laws . The third 

segment of the Council i s  the Legislative Com­

mittee . Two members are appointed from each 

of the veterans organizations and a committee 

chairman . They are appointed for two years . 

They should be from the Bismarck area so they 

may attend hearings on bills affecting the veter­

ans .  

The Legislative Council 's main function i s  

drafting, monitoring, and seeking sponsors for 

veterans legi slation. It is not an administrative 

body. Administration and implementation of 

veterans laws is the function of the A COVA. 

ND Vietnam Veterans of America 
435 North Dakota Members, JO Local Chapters 

66, 000 Members Nationwide 
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SENATE BILL 2 195 

Testimony before the North Dakota Senate 
Government and Veterans Affairs Committee 

By 

Mark Landis 
Burleigh County Veterans Service Officer 
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Mister Chairman, members of the committee, good morning. My name is Mark Landis . I have 
been the veterans service officer in Burleigh County for 1 5  years and currently serve as president 
of the Professional Veterans Advocates of North Dakota. 

I am here to support Senate Bil l  2 1 95 ,  which would offset burial fees for eligible non-veteran 
family members at the North Dakota Veterans Cemetery. Burleigh County has the highest 
number of veterans at the cemetery. 

We often discuss benefits and programs for veterans and military personnel ,  and rightfully so . I 
know you are wel l  aware of the sacrifices they make for our country. Family members also 
make sacrifices, although that fact does not always receive the proper level of recognition . 

Spouses and children must often endure long periods of separation from family members 
deployed to combat zones .  They offer strong moral support for the troops while dealing with 
their own anxiety and increased responsibilities .  In that respect they are also integral to our 
country ' s  war effort. 

When a military member returns home, there is often a period of adjustment as roles are 
reestablished. In many cases, veterans are dealing with permanent disabilities that resulted from 
military service, but they are not alone. Spouses and children also deal with it, often for a 
lifetime. It could be physical l imitations for the veteran. It could be mental health. Perhaps you 
know someone who lives with a veteran suffering from post-traumatic stress, and have witnessed 
the tol l  it takes on their family. 

Providing a burial benefit for family members may be a small thank you compared to their 
sacrifices, but it would be a significant gesture of good wil l  and recognition of their contributions 
to our state and nation. 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify today . 
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Good morn ing Mr. Cha i rman ,  members of the committee ,  I am B rigad ier  Genera l  Robert 

Beckl und ,  Deputy Adjutant Genera l  for the North Dakota Nationa l  G uard .  I am here today to 

provide updated and add it iona l  on Senate B i l l  2195  on  beha lf of the Office of the Adjutant 

Genera l .  

F i rst , we wou ld l i ke to p rovide you with some data to he l p  you better est imate the amount of 

genera l  funds requ i red to off-set the loss of specia l  fund ing we cu rrent ly rece ive fo r the buria l  of 

ou r  veteran 's  spouses and/or  dependents . The $1 60 , 000 amount i n  the b i l l  was based on  

h istorica l projections prior  to 201 5 and wi l l  not be  enough fo r us to provide  the requ i red bu ria ls  

shou ld th is  b i l l  pass as written .  Fo r examp le ,  d u ri ng the 201 5-1 7 b ienn i um the actua l  amount 

was just over  $1 66 ,000 ; and for the 201 7-1 9 b ienn i um the actua l  amount is  project ing to be 

approximately $196 , 650 .  Based upon th is i ncreas ing trend of spouse/dependent bu ria ls  per 

yea r  at the cu rrent rate of $550 each , we project the amount i n  the 2019-21 b ienn i um  to be 

closer to $210 , 000 .  And , if we have h igher  than average buria ls  of spouses and/or  dependents , 

o r  if rates i ncrease , it is  poss ib le that we wou ld  not have enough fund ing under  th is  b i l l  to cover 

actua l  costs forc ing us to re-ro le  fu nd ing from our  exist ing Operat ions and Ma i ntenance accounts 

to cover costs of buria ls .  

A lso , the authority of  th is b i l l  exp i ring on  June  30 , 2021 presents some concerns .  For examp le ,  

once a program such  as th i s  is created i t  wi l l  have to  be ma inta i ned i n  o rder  to  not  b reak trust 

with any futu re veterans who have ga i ned an expectat ion that the costs associated with the 

buria l  of the i r  spouse or dependents wi l l  be provided by the state . So ,  if th is  b i l l  i s  passed , 

fund ing requ i rements are ant ic ipated to be inc luded i n  a l l  Office of the Adjutant Genera l  futu re 

budget requests . 

Add itiona l ly ,  we cu rrent ly have $14 ,900 i n  prepa id buria l  fees fo r the futu re bu ria ls  of spouses 

and/or  dependents of some of our veterans .  If th is  b i l l  becomes law we wou ld be prepared to 

refund the prepaid money rece ived from any of those that pass du ring the 2019-21 b ienn i um .  

As  th is b i l l  covers on l y  the 2019-21 b ienn i um ,  ou r  i ntent ion wou ld be  to not refund any  other  

p repaid funds rece ived unt i l  futu re years fund ing fo r th i s  program is assured . 

F ina l ly , there is  a new nationa l  Veteran 's  Cemetery com ing to Fargo and the Stand ing  Rock 

S ioux Tri be has recent ly rece ived a g rant to construct the nationa l  Al l  Nat ions Veterans  

Cemetery nea r  Fort Yates .  As  federa l  ru les a l low fo r no-cost buria l  services for  a spouse and  

dependents o f  veterans i n  nationa l  cemeteries ,  t h i s  b i l l  wou ld provide t he  North Dakota Veterans 

Cemetery with comparab le equ ity to these loca l nationa l  veteran 's  cemeteries .  

Thank  you fo r you r  t ime and I wou ld be g lad to answer any questions you may have . 
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PROPOSED AMENDM ENTS TO SENATE BILL NO . 2 1 95 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 5, replace "$1 60 , 000" with "$250 , 000" 

Ren umbe r acco rdingly 

Page No .  1 1 9 . 0933 . 0 1 001  
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NORTH DAKOTA SENATE 

STATE CAPITOL 
600 EAST BOULEVARD 

B ISMARCK, ND  58505-0360 

Testimony 

Senate Bill No. 2195 

Senate Appropriation Committee 

Senator Holmberg, Chairman 

COMMITTEES:  
Education 

Government and Veterans Affairs 

Chairman Holmberg, members of the Senate Appropriation Committee, for the record my 

name is Richard Marcellais, Senator from District 9, of Rolette County I am here today to 

provide testimony in support of Senate Bill 2195. 

Senate Bill 2195 would allow for the spouse or eligible dependents burial fees of $550.00 

to be waved. 

The North Dakota Veterans Cemetery was established by an act of the 1989 Legislative 

and is operated by the Office of the Adjutant General of North Dakota. 

Any Veteran wartime or peacetime service is eligible for burial in the North Dakota 

Veterans Cemetery. Present and past National Guard members, Army, Air Force, Navy, 

Marine Corps and Coast Guard Reserve Forces. 

There is no cost to the Veteran for burial. If a spouse or eligible dependent is buried the 

fee is $550.00. 

In honor of all those who have served & especially to those Veterans who have protected 

our countries freedoms, may they rest in peace. 

I believe that our North Dakota Veterans spouses and dependents are entitled to have 

their burial fees of $550 should be waived. 

Thank You very much for the opportunity to appear in support of Senate Bill 2195, If there 

are any questions, I will try and answer them. 
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The sacrifice of ou r  m i l ita ry pe rsonne l  i s  acknowledged a nd a pp reciated by most 

America ns .  F rom huge send offs to packed a i rport term i na ls u pon com i ng home 

ou r  veterans a re given robust a pp lauds  a nd sta nd ovat ions .  The except ion to th i s  

story was those of us  who came back  from Vietnam .  The re was no j ubi lat ion 

u po n  our return .  

Most of  the t ime, the m i l ita ry o r  vetera n spouse i s  l eft on  the s ide l i nes, 

u n recogn ized for his or  her sacrifice, cou rage a nd comm itment to the nat ion .  

There i s  no jub i lat ion for them e ither. M i l ita ry and  vetera n spouses a re tru ly the 

unsung hero, often wi l l i ngly or u nw i l l i ngly putt ing the i r  ca ree rs on  ho ld ,  often to 

the detr iment of the i r  fi nanc i a l  we l l be i ng. Wh i le the othe r  spouse is gone often i n  

ha rms' way. The spouse a t  home i s  t ryi ng to  ra ise a fam i ly, have a ca ree r, ba l a nce 

the fin a nces, f ix the ca r, ca l l  the p l u m ber  being two pa rents at once yet never 

comp la i n i ng. Al l too often the s pouse becomes a ca regiver to a d isa b led vetera n, 

suffer i ng from PTSD, loss of l imbs or who is s lowly dyi ng from the effects of Agent 

Orange and  other  tox ins .  

We a l l  know that the veteran i s  i nterred free of cha rge i n  a ny Federa l  o r  State 

Vetera n Cemetery. It is  t ime to honor  the spouse whose sacrifice, cou rage and  

com m itment is no less te l l i ng. We have a n  opportu n ity to  honor  the  sacrifices, 

comm itments a nd cou rage of the spouse who he ld  th i ngs together at home .  Th i s  

b i l l  wou ld do just that . 

Cu rrent ly d u ring the 50th Com memorat ion of the Vietnam Wa r, spouses of 

Vietnam Veterans a re presented a "B lue  Sta r" to com memorate the i r  ma rr iage to 

a Vietnam Vetera n .  The accompa nying citation  states in pa rt "On beha lf of a 

gratefu l Nat ion and  the Department of Defense we honor  you r  service a nd 

sacrifice . Our  Nat ion i s  fo rever i ndebted to you and  extends  it deepest respect 

and adm i rat ions" . Passage if th i s  b i l l  wou ld recogn ize the sacrifices of these 

u nseen and  u nsu ng heroes, The spouse of a m i l ita ry veteran' 

The N D  Vetera ns Legis lat ive Cou nc i l  su ppo rts th is legis lation . 
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SENATE BILL 2 1 95 

Testimony before the 
North Dakota Senate Appropriations Committee 

By 

Mark Landis 
Burleigh County Veterans Service Officer 

Mister Chairman, members of the committee, good morning. My name is Mark Landis .  I have 
been the veterans service officer in Burleigh County for 1 5  years and currently serve as president 
of the Professional Veterans Advocates of North Dakota. 

I am here to support Senate Bi l l  2 1 95 ,  which would offset burial fees for eligible non-veteran 
family members at the North Dakota Veterans Cemetery. Burleigh County has the highest 
number of veterans at the cemetery. At this time, I would also l ike to thank Senator Marcellais 
for bringing this bil l forward. 

We often discuss benefits and programs for veterans and military personnel ,  and rightfully so . I 
know you are wel l  aware of the sacrifices they make for our country. Family members also 
make sacrifices, although that fact does not always receive the proper level of recognition. 

Spouses and children must often endure long periods of separation from family members 
deployed to combat zones .  They offer strong moral support for the troops while dealing with 
their own anxiety and increased responsibilities .  In that respect they are also integral to our 
country' s  war effort. 

When a military member returns home, there i s  often a period of adjustment as roles are 
reestablished. In many cases, veterans are dealing with permanent disabilities that resulted from 
military service, but they are not alone. Spouses and children also deal with it, often for a 
l ifetime. It could be physical limitations for the veteran. It could be mental health. Perhaps you 
know someone who lives with a veteran suffering from post-traumatic stress, and have witnessed 
the tol l  it takes on their family. 

Providing a burial benefit for family members may be a small thank you compared to their 
sacrifices, but it would be a significant gesture of good will and recognition of their contributions 
to our state and nation. 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify today. 

February 8 ,  20 1 9  
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Good morn ing  M r. Cha i rman , members of the comm ittee ,  I am B rigad ier Genera l  Robert 

Beckl und , Deputy Adjutant Genera l  for the North Dakota Nationa l  G uard .  I am here today to 

provide u pdated and add it iona l  i nformat ion on Senate B i l l  2195 on  beha lf of the Office of the 

Adjutant Genera l .  

F i rst , we wou ld  l i ke to p rovide you with some data to he l p  you better est imate the amount of 

genera l  funds requ i red to off-set the loss of the specia l  fund ing we cu rrent ly rece ive fo r the buria l  

of  our  veteran 's  spouses and/or  dependents. The o rig i na l  $1 60 , 000 amount i n  the b i l l  was based 

on h istorica l projections pr ior to 201 5 and wou ld not have been enough for us  to provide  the 

requ i red buria ls  shou ld this b i l l  pass as written .  For examp le ,  d u ri ng the 201 5-1 7 b ienn i um the 

actua l  amount was just over $166 ,000 ;  and for the 201 7-1 9 b ienn i um the actua l  amount is 

project ing to be approximate ly $196 ,650 .  Based upon  this i ncreas ing trend of spouse/dependent 

buria ls  per yea r  at the cu rrent rate of $550 each ,  we project the amount i n  the 2019-21 b ienn i um 

to be  c loser to  $21 0 ,000 .  And , i f  we  have h igher  t han  average buria ls  o f  spouses and/o r 

dependents,  o r  if rates i ncrease , it is possib le  that we wou ld not have enough fund i ng under  th is  

b i l l  to  cover actua l  costs forc ing us to re-ro le  fund ing from our  existi ng Operations and 

Ma intenance accounts to cover costs of buria ls .  We are comfortab le with the $250 ,000 now 

proposed . 

Also ,  the authority of th is b i l l  exp i ri ng on  J une 30 , 2021 presents some concerns .  For examp le ,  

once a program such as th i s  is created i t  wi l l  have to  be  ma inta i ned i n  o rder  to  not break trust 

with any future veterans who have ga ined an expectat ion that the costs associated with the 

buria l  of the i r  spouse or dependents wi l l  be provided . So , if this b i l l  is passed , fund i ng 

requ i rements are ant ic ipated to be inc luded i n  a l l  Office of the Adjutant Genera l  futu re budget 

req uests . 

Add it iona l ly ,  we cu rrent ly have $14 , 900 i n  p repaid fees for the futu re buria ls  of spouses and/o r  

dependents o f  some of our  veterans .  If th is b i l l  becomes law we wou ld  be  prepared to  refund 

any prepaid money rece ived from those that pass du ring the 201 9-21 b ienn i um .  As th is  b i l l  

covers on ly the  201 9-21 b ienn i um ,  ou r  i ntention wou ld  be  to  not refund any other  prepaid funds 

received unt i l  futu re-years fund ing for th is  p rogram is assured . 

F ina l ly ,  there i s  a new national  Veteran 's  Cemetery com ing to Fargo and the Stand i ng Rock 

S ioux Tribe has recently rece ived a g rant to construct the nationa l  Al l Nations Veterans 

Cemetery near Fort Yates.  As federa l  ru les a l low for no-cost buria l  services for the_spouse and 

dependents of veterans i n  nationa l  cemeteries ,  th is b i l l  wou ld  provide the North Dakota Veterans 

Cemetery with comparab le  equ ity to these local nationa l  veteran 's  cemeteries .  

Thank you fo r you r  t ime and I wou ld be g lad to answer any quest ions you may have . 
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Chairman Kasper, members of the Government Veteran Affairs Committee, for the record 

my name is Richard Marcellais, Senator from District 9, of Belcourt I am here today to 

provide testimony on Senate Bill 2 1 95. 

Senate Bill 2 1 95 would allow for the spouse or eligible dependents burial fees of $550. 00 to be 

waved. 
! Ci  � 9  

The North Dakota Veterans Cemetery was established by an act of the 2989 Legislative 

Assembly and is operated by the Office of the Adjutant General of North Dakota. 

Any Veteran wartime or peacetime service is eligible for burial in the North Dakota Veterans 

Cemetery. Present and past National Guard members and present and past Army, Air Force, 

Navy, Marine Corps and Coast Guard Reserve Forces. 

There is no cost to the Veteran for burial. If a spouse or eligible dependent is buried the fee is 

$550. 

In honor of all those who have served & especially to those Veterans who have protected our 

countries freedoms, may they rest in peace. 

I believe that our North Dakota Veterans spouses and dependents are entitled to have their 

burial fees of $550 should be waved. 

Thank You very much for the opportunity to appear in support of Senate Bill 2 1 95. If there are 

any questions I will try and answer them. 
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.3 - J - )  7 58-2195 open i ng a grave for a spouse a nd e l ig ib le  dependents N DVC 

The sacrifice of ou r  m i l ita ry personne l  is acknowledged a nd a pp rec iated by most 

Americans .  F rom huge send offs to packed a i rport term ina l s  upon com i ng home 

our  veterans a re given robust a pp lause and sta nd i ng ovations .  The exception to 

th is  story was those of  us who came back from Vietnam .  

The re i s  a nother group  that rece ive no robust a pp la use a nd sta nd i ng ovat ions :  the 

spouses of our veterans .  Most of the t ime, spouse is left on  the s ide l i nes, 

u n recogn ized fo r his or her sacrifice, cou rage a nd comm itment to the nat ion .  

M i l ita ry a nd vetera n spouses a re tru ly t he  u nsu ng heroes, often putt ing the i r  

ca reers on  ho ld ,  often to  the  detr iment o f  the i r  fi na nc ia l we l l be i ng, wh i l e  the 

othe r  spouse is gone se rving the Nation .  The spouse at home is  t ryi ng to ra ise a 

fam i ly, have a ca reer, ba la nce the fin ances, fix the ca r, ca l l  the  p l umbe r  bei ng two 

pa rents at once yet never comp la i n i ng .  Al l too often the spouse becomes a 

ca regive r to a d isa b led vete ra n, suffe ri ng  from PTSD, loss of l imbs o r  who i s  s lowly 

dying from the effects of Agent Orange a nd other  tox ins  . 

We a l l  know that the veteran is i nterred free of cha rge i n  a ny Federa l  o r  State 

Vetera n Cemetery. The spouse is p rovid ed free i nte rnment in a Federa l Cemetery .  

I t  i s  t ime to honor the spouse whose sacrifice, cou rage a nd comm itment is no less 

te l l i ng. We have an opportun ity to honor  the sacrifices, comm itments a nd 

cou rage of the spouse who he rd th i ngs together  at home . Current ly d u ring the 

50th Commemorat ion of the Vietnam War, spouses of Vietnam Vetera ns a re 

p resented a "B lue Sta r" to commemorate the i r  ma rr iage to a Vietna m  Vetera n .  

The accompanying c itat ion states i n  pa rt "On beha lf of a gratefu l Nat ion a n d  the 

Department of Defense we honor you r  service a nd sacrifice .  Ou r N at ion i s  forever 

i ndebted to you a nd extends its deepest respect a nd adm i rat ions ."  With the 

Passage of th i s  b i l l  we wou ld  be sayi ng a sma l l  way "On beha lf of  a gratefu l State 

we honor  you r  service a nd sacrifice ." 

P lease g ive a do pass to th is  bi l l  a nd l ets u s  as  a state honor  these u nsu ng heroes, 

The spouse of a vetera n . 
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Mister Chairman, members of the committee, good morning. My name is  Mark Landis .  I have 
been the veterans service officer in Burleigh County for 1 5  years and currently serve as president 
of the Professional Veterans Advocates of North Dakota. 

I am here to support Senate Bil l  2 1 95 ,  which would offset burial fees for eligible non-veteran 
family members at the North Dakota Veterans Cemetery. Burleigh County has the highest 
number of veterans at the cemetery. At this time, I would also l ike to thank Senator Marcellais 
for bringing this bil l forward. 

We often discuss benefits and programs for veterans and military personnel ,  and rightfully so. I 
know you are wel l  aware of the sacrifices they make for our country . Family members also 
make sacrifices, although that fact does not always receive the proper level of recognition. 

Spouses and children must often endure long periods of separation from family members 
deployed to combat zones .  They offer strong moral support for the troops while dealing with 
their own anxiety and increased responsibilities .  In that respect they are also integral to our 
country' s  war effort. 

When a military member returns home, there is  often a period of adjustment as roles are 
reestabl ished. In many cases, veterans are dealing with permanent disabil ities that resulted from 
military service, but they are not alone. Spouses and children also deal with it, often for a 
l ifetime. It could be physical l imitations for the veteran. It could be mental health. Perhaps you 
know someone who lives with a veteran suffering from post-traumatic stress, and have witnessed 
the toll i t  takes on their family. 

Providing a burial benefit for family members may be a small thank you compared to their 
sacrifices, but it would be a significant gesture of good wil l  and recognition of their contributions 
to our state and nation. 

Thank you for the opportunity to testify today. 

March 1 ,  20 1 9  
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Good morn i ng Mr. Cha i rman ,  members of the committee ,  I am B rigad ier  Genera l  Robert 

Beckl und ,  Deputy Adjutant Genera l  fo r the North Dakota Nationa l  G uard .  I am here today to 

provide updated and add it iona l  i nformation  on Senate B i l l  2195 on  beha lf of the Office of the 

Adjutant Genera l .  

F i rst , we would l i ke to provide you with some data to he lp  you better estimate the  amount of 

genera l  funds requ i red to off-set the loss of the specia l  fund ing we cu rrent ly receive fo r the buria l  

of  ou r  veteran 's  spouses and/or  dependents. The orig ina l  $1 60 , 000 amount i n  the b i l l  was based 

on  h isto rica l projections pr ior to 201 5 and wou ld  not have been enough for us to provide  the 

requ i red buria ls should this b i l l  pass as written .  For examp le ,  du ri ng the 201 5-1 7 b ienn i um the 

actua l  amount was just over $166 ,000 ;  and fo r the 201 7-1 9 b ienn i um the actua l  amount is 

project ing to be approximate ly $196 ,650 .  Based upon  this i ncreas ing trend of spouse/dependent 

buria ls  per year at the cu rrent rate of $550 each , we project the amount i n  the 2019-21 b ienn i um 

to be  c loser to $21 0 ,000 .  And , if we have h i gher  than  average buria ls  o f  spouses and/o r  

dependents , or i f  rates i ncrease , i t  i s  poss ib le that we wou ld  not have enough fund ing u nder  th is  

b i l l  to  cover actua l  costs fo rcing us  to re-ro le  fund i ng from our  exist ing Operations  and 

Ma i ntenance accounts to cover costs of buria l s .  We a re comfortab le with the $250 , 000 now 

proposed . 

Also , the authority of th is b i l l  exp i ring on  June  30 ,  2021 presents some concerns .  For examp le ,  

once a program such as th i s  is created i t  wi l l  have to  be ma inta ined i n  o rder  to  not  break trust 

with any future veterans who have ga i ned an  expectat ion that the costs associated with the 

buria l  of their spouse or dependents wi l l  be p rovided . So , if th is b i l l  i s  passed , fund i ng 

requ i rements are antici pated to be inc luded i n  a l l  Office of the Adjutant Genera l  futu re budget 

requests . 

Add it iona l ly ,  we cu rrent ly have $14 ,900 i n  prepaid fees fo r the futu re buria ls  of spouses and/o r  

dependents of some of our  veterans.  If th is b i l l  becomes law we wou ld  be  prepared to  refund 

any prepaid money rece ived from those that pass du ring  the 201 9-21 b ienn i um .  As th is  b i l l  

covers on ly the  2019-21 b ienn ium ,  ou r  i ntention wou ld  be to  not refund any other prepaid funds 

rece ived unt i l  futu re-years fund ing fo r th is prog ram is assured . 

F i na l ly , there is a new nationa l  Veteran 's  Cemetery com ing to Fargo and the Stand i ng Rock 

S ioux Tri be has recently rece ived a g rant to construct the nationa l  Al l  Nations Veterans 

Cemetery near Fort Yates .  As federa l  ru les a l low fo r no-cost buria l  services for the_spouse and 

dependents of veterans i n  nationa l  cemeteries ,  th is  b i l l  wou ld provide the North Dakota Veterans 

Cemetery with comparab le equ ity to these loca l nationa l  veteran 's  cemeteries .  

Thank you fo r your  t ime and I wou ld be g lad to answer any questions you may have . 
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37-03-1 4 .  North Dakota veterans'  cemetery - Admin istration .  '3 I ( a, The adjutant gene ra l  sha l l estab l ish  and operate the N orth Dakota veterans' cemetery, - -

which the adjutant genera l sha l l l ocate with i n  or adjacent to Fort Abraham L inco l n  state park .  
The adj utant genera l may accept and expend p rivate and federa l funds to estab l ish  and operate 
the veterans' cemetery. A l l moneys received from private or federa l sources must be paid to the 
state treasurer fo r deposit i nto the veterans'  cemetery maintenance fund. The adjutant genera l , 
with the approva l of the governor, may enter i nto an agreement with the d i rector of the parks 
and recreation department for the ma intenance of the cemetery. The adj utant genera l sha l l 
p rov ide l ots i n  the state veterans' cemetery for the i nterment of deceased members of the 
nat iona l guard ,  other reserve components,  and veterans ,  and their spouses , mi nor ch i ld ren ,  and 
u nmarried adu l t  ch i ld ren who were phys ica l l y  or menta l l y  d i sab l ed and i ncapab l e  of se lf-support .  
The adjutant genera l may adopt ,  amend , or  resc ind any ru l es u nder chapter 28-32 as deemed 
necessary to imp lement and admin ister th is section . 

37-03-1 5 .  Training facility desig nated . 
The t ra in ing  faci l ity l ocated at Camp Grafton (South ) i s  to remain  a part of the overa l l Camp 

G rafton tra in ing  comp l ex but  is des ignated as the Major Genera l C .  Eme rson M u r ry reg iona l l ive 
fi re and maneuver tra in ing  cente r. 

37-03-1 6 .  Adj utant general - Provision of fu nd ing - Source. 
The adjutant gene ra l  sha l l pay a l l expenses incu rred by the state to part ic ipate i n  the 

compact on ed ucat iona l oppo rtun ity for m i l i tary ch i l dren, i nc lud i ng  the reimbu rsement of actua l 
and necessary expenses incu rred by members of the state cou nci l ,  from the ope rati ng 
expenses l ine item in  the appropr iation b i l l  fo r the adjutant genera l ,  as approved by the 
l eg is lat ive assem b l y. 

37-03-1 7 .  North Dakota adj utant general and disaster response coin - Presented by 
whom - Qualifications.  

The adjutant genera l may present an adj utant gene ra l  co in to deserv i ng i nd iv idua l s  who 
have d ist i ngu ished themse l ves th roug h  exceptiona l se rv ice to the m iss ion of the No rth Dakota 
nat iona l guard o r  department of emergency services. The adjutant  genera l may present a 
d isaster response co in  to dese rving i nd iv idua l s  who have d isti ngu ished themse lves th rough  
exceptiona l service du ring  times of  d isaster or  emergency in  the state .  

Page No .  4 
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Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

I ntroduced by 

Appropriations Committee 

F IRST ENGROSSMENT 0 

ENGROSSE D  SENATE B ILL NO.  201 6 

1 A B I LL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defrayi ng the expenses of the office of the 

2 adjutant general ; to amend and reenact sections 37-07 . 1-03 and 37-07 .2-01 of the North 

3 Dakota Century Code ,  re lat ing to the national guard tuit ion waiver and national  guard tuit ion 

4 grants; to provide for a transfer ; to provide for a report; to provide a statement of legislative 

5 i ntent; to provide an exemption ; and to declare an emergency. 

6 BE IT  ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

7 SECTION 1 .  APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in  this section , or so much of the funds 

8 as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in  the general fund i n  the state 

9 treasury, not otherwise appropriated, and from specia l  funds derived from federal  funds and 

1 0  other income, to the office of the adjutant general for the purpose of defray ing the expenses of 

1 1  the office of the adjutant general, for the b ienn ium beg inn ing J u ly 1 ,  2019, and end ing June 30, 

1 2  202 1 ,  as fol lows: 

1 3  Subd ivision 1 .  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  
1 9  
20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

Salaries and wages 

Operating expenses 

Capital assets 

G rants 

Civi l  a i r  patrol 

Tuit ion, recru it ing,  and retention 

Air guard contract 

Army guard contract 

NATIONAL GUARD 

Base Level 

$6 ,666 ,525 

3 , 525 ,934 

224, 046 

318,553 

299 , 580 

2 ,6 1 7 ,500 

8, 098,582 

57,717 ,944 

Page No.  1 

Adjustments or 

Enhancements Ai;:rnropriation 

$147 , 083 $6,813 ,608 

(758,613) 2 , 767 ,321 

0 224, 046 

(107 ,637) 210,916 

4 ,295 303, 875 

2, 164 ,572 4,782,072 

443,544 8, 542, 126 

(10,818,059) 46, 899, 885 

19.0229.02000 
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Sixty-sixth ..:> �3 -- 1 � 1 q 
Legislative Assembly 

1 Veterans' cemetery 881 ,284 9 1 , 388 972 ,672 

2 Reintegration program 1 , 261 , 384 (2 1 3 , 635) 1 ,047 , 749 

3 Camp Grafton expansion Q 600,000 600,000 

4 Total a l l  funds $8 1 , 6 1 1 , 332 ($8 ,447 , 062) $73 , 1 64 ,270 

5 Less est imated income 65,1 74,778 (1 0,426,348) 54,748,430 

6 Total general fund $ 1 6 ,436,554 $ 1 , 979 ,286 $ 1 8 ,4 1 5 , 840 

7 Subd ivision 2 .  

8 DEPARTM ENT OF EMERG ENCY SERVI C ES 

9 Adjustments or 

1 0  Base Level Enhancements AI:;mroRriation 

1 1  Salaries and wages $ 1 2 , 55 1 , 1 19 ($ 1 ,226 ,4 1 4) $ 1 1 , 324 , 705 

1 2  Operating  expenses 6 , 988,45 1 2 , 379 , 1 49 9 ,367 ,600 

1 3  Capital assets 0 660 , 000 660 , 000 

1 4  Grants 1 6 ,889 , 1 59 (615 ,734) 1 6 ,273 ,425 

1 5  Disaster costs 51 ,445 ,84 1  ( 1 8 ,992 , 52 1 )  32 ,453, 320 

1 6  Rad io  commun ications Q 785,000 785,000 

1 7  Total a l l  funds $87,874 , 570 ($ 1 7 , 0 1 0 , 520) $70 ,864 , 050 

1 8  Less est imated income 78,424,702 (1 6,757,646) 6 1 ,667,056 

1 9  Total general fund $9,449, 868 ($252 , 874) $9 , 1 96 ,994 

20 Subd ivision 3 .  

2 1  B I LL TOTAL 

22 Adjustments or 

23 Base Level Enhancements Appropriat ion 

24 Grand total general  fund $25 , 886,422 $1 , 726 ,412 $27 ,6 1 2 , 834 

25 G rand total special funds 143,599,480 (27,183,994) 1 1 6,41 5,486 

26 Grand total all funds $ 1 69,485 , 902 ($25 ,457 , 582) $ 1 44 ,028 , 320 

27 Fu l l-t ime equ ivalent positions 234 .00 ( 1 0 . 00) 224 .00 

28 SECTION 2.  O NE-TIME FUNDING - EFFECT ON BASE BUDGET - REPORT TO SIXTY-

29 SEVENTH LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY. The fol lowing amounts reflect one-time fund ing items 

30 approved by the sixty-fifth legislative assembly for the 201 7- 1 9 b ienn i um and the 20 1 9-2 1 

3 1  bienn i um one-time fund ing items inc luded i n  section 1 of this Act : 

Page No.  2 1 9 .0229 .02000 



Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assem bly 

1 One-Time Funding Description 

2 National guard readiness center 

3 Emergency response equ ipment 

4 Camp Grafton expansion 

5 Un interruptib le power supply battery replacement 

6 Computer-aided dispatch equ ipment 

7 Message switch system upgrade 

8 D ispatch ing service fee shortfall 

9 Dakota access p ipe l ine law enforcement 

1 0  Mobi le repeaters and programming radios 

1 1  Total al l  funds 

1 2  Total  other funds 

1 3  Total general fund 

20 1 7-19  

33 ,000 , 000 

569 , 000 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

21 , 000, 000 

300,000 

$54 , 869 ,000 

54,869,000 

$0 

11i 
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2019-21 

$0 

660 ,000 

600 , 000 

20 , 000 

516 , 000 

335, 000 

1 , 2 1 2 , 253 

0 

Q 

$3 ,343,253 

3,162,253 

$181 , 000 

1 4  The 2019-21 b ienn i um one-t ime fundi ng amounts are not a part of the ent ity's base budget 

1 5  for the 2021-23 b ienn ium .  The adjutant general shal l  report to the appropriations committees of 

1 6  the sixty-seventh legislative assembly on the use of th is one-t ime funding for the b ienn ium 

1 7  beg inn ing Ju ly 1 ,  2019 ,  and ending June 30 ,  2021 . 

1 8  SECTION 3. VETERANS' CEMETERY MAINTENANCE FUND - APPROPRIATION. I n  

1 9  addit ion to the amount appropriated to the adjutant general i n  the veterans' cemetery l ine item 

20 in subdivision 1 of sect ion 1 of this Act , there is appropriated any addit ional funds that are 

2 1  received and deposited i n  the veterans' cemetery maintenance fund pursuant to sections 

22 37-03-14 and 39-04-10 . 10  for the operation of the North Dakota veterans' cemetery for the 

23 bienn ium beg inn ing J u ly 1, 20 1 9 , and ending J une 30 , 2021 .  

24 SECTION 4. ESTIMATED INCOME - STRATEGIC INVESTMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS 

25 FUND. The est imated income l ine item in  subdivision 1 of sect ion 1 of th is Act inc ludes 

26 $600 , 000 of one-t ime funding from the strateg ic i nvestment and improvements fund for the 

27 camp Grafton expansion . The est imated income l i ne item in  subdivision 2 of  sect ion 1 of th is Act 

28 includes $ 1 , 902 ,253 of  one-time funding from the strateg ic investment and improvements fund 

29 for computer-aided dispatch equ i pment, message switch system upg rades , and 911 dispatch ing 

30 service operations due to a revenue shortfa l l .  

Page No. 3 19 .0229 .02000 
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1 SECTION 5. CAMP GRAFTON EXPANSION - LEGISLATIVE I NTENT. It is the intent of the 

2 sixty-sixth legislat ive assembly that: 

3 1 .  The adjutant general pu rchase options du ring the period beginning with the effect ive 

4 

5 

6 

7 

date of th is Act and ending June 30 ,  202 1 , for the purchase or long-term lease of land 

for the camp Grafton expansion, including the purchase of no more than one thousand 

six hundred acres and the long-term lease of the remainder, not to exceed six 

thousand acres in total . 

8 2 .  If the adjutant general secures options to purchase or lease a l l  necessary land for the 

9 

1 0  
1 1  

camp Grafton expansion, the sixty-seventh legislative assem bly provide funding and 

authority for the purchase or long-term lease of land for the camp G rafton expansion 

during the biennium beginning J u ly 1 ,  202 1 , and ending J une 30 ,  2023.  

1 2  3 .  The adjutant general not use eminent domain for the expansion of camp Grafton. 

1 3  SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 37-07 . 1 -03 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

1 4  amended and reenacted as fol lows: 

1 5  37-07.1 -03. Tuition waiver - Terms. 

1 6  A qual ifying member of the national guard who enrol ls in any state-control led school ,  

1 7  subject to ru les adopted by the adjutant genera l ,  is entit led to receive a P.'lenty fiveth i rty-five 

1 8  percent waiver of the tu ition from the state-contro l led school , conditioned on the adjutant 

1 9  general having sufficient appropriat ions for tu ition reimbursement under sect ion 37-07 . 1 -06 .2 .  

20 The tu ition waiver is val id only so long as the member of  the nat ional guard maintains 

2 1  satisfactory performance with the g uard, meets the qua l ification requ i rements of ru les adopted 

22 by the adjutant genera l ,  and pursues a course of study in a manner that satisfies the normal 

23  requ i rements of t he  school . 

24 SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 37-07 .2-0 1 of the North Dakota Centu ry Code is 

25  amended and reenacted as  fol lows : 

26 37-07.2-01 .  National guard tuitionmember grants and tuition waivers - Terms ef-

27 grants. 

28 Afty 

29 1,_ Subject to legislative appropriat ion and rules adopted by the adjutant general, a 

30  qual ifying member of the national guard who  enrol ls in an  accredited postsecondary 

3 1  institution in North Dakota wh ich is not controlled by the state may, subject to the 

Page No. 4 1 9 . 0229 .02000 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Sixty-sixth 
Leg islative Assembly 

ff �  
SB ;;; rq < 

3- (  - I 

limitations of available appropriated funds and subject to national guard rules adopted 

by the adjutant general, rece ive a g rant i n  an amount not to exceed the cost of tu it ion 

and fees for s imi lar cou rses and credit hours for eaeJ:t.a qua l ifying  member of the 

nat ional guard who is enrol led at-ain the North Dakota un iversity system 

seA-OOlinstitut ion with the h ighest tu it ion and fee rate . 

6 2 .  Any  accred ited postsecondary i nst itut ion that agrees to participate in such ais not 

7 

8 

9 

1 0  
1 1  

contro l led by the state and wh ich participates i n  the nat ional  guard member grant 

program mustshall waive twenty-five percent of the tu it ion fofthat otherwise wou ld  be 

charged to each en rolled, qua l ifying member of the nat iona l  guardsmenguard . These 

grants must be distributed according to rules promulgated by the adjutant general and 

are available only so 

1 2  3 .  The adjutant general sha l l  adopt ru les for d istribut ing grants under th is  section and 

1 3  establ ish ing qual ification requ i rements for grant recipients. 

1 4  4 .  A member o f  the national guard may receive a grant unde r  th is sect ion on ly as long as 

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  
1 8  

the member maintains satisfactory performance with the nat ional  guard ,  meets the 

qua l ificat ion requ i rements of the rules adopted under  th is sect ion , and pursues a 

cou rse of study ·11hich satisfiessatisfying the normal requ i rements of the 

sel9-eelpostsecondary institut ion i n  wh ich the member is enrol led . 

1 9  5 .  For pu rposes of  calculat i ng the grant amount under  subsection 1 ,  the  "cost of  tu i t ion 

20 and fees for s imi lar courses and cred it hours for a qual ifying member of the nat ional 

2 1  guard who i s  enrol led i n  the North Dakota un iversity system inst itut ion with the h ighest 

22 tu i t ion and fee rate" may not be reduced by more than twenty-five percent pursuant to 

23  sect ion 37-07 . 1 -03 .  

24 SECTION 8. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS - TRANSFERS. The d i rector of  the office of 

25  management and  budget may transfer up  to  $500,000 of  appropriat ion authority to  the 

26 operat ing expenses and capital assets l ine items conta ined in sect ion 1 of th is Act from the 

27 various other l ine items contained in  sect ion 1 of th is Act , as requested by the adjutant general 

28 to provide for the maintenance and repair of state-owned armories i n  th is state du ring the 

29 bienn ium beg inn ing  J u ly 1 ,  20 1 9 , and ending June 30, 202 1 . The adjutant general shal l notify 

30 the legis lative counci l  of any transfers made pursuant to th is sect ion .  

Page No .  5 1 9 .0229 .02000 
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1 SECTION 9 .  EXEMPTION. Any amounts carried over in the rad io  communications line item 

2 for the state rad io tower package, in sect ion 7 of chapter 15  of the 2017 Session Laws is not 

3 subject to section 54-44 . 1-11 and any unexpended funds are avai lab le for completing these 

4 projects or for technology upgrade costs requ ired to implement the statewide interoperable 

5 rad io network during the biennium beg inning Ju ly 1 ,  2019 ,  and end ing J une 30 ,  2021 . 

6 SECTION 1 0. EXEMPTION.  The amount appropriated in the tu it ion, recru iting , and 

7 retention l ine item in subd ivision 1 of section 1 of chapter 15  of the 2017 Session Laws is not 

8 subject to section 54-44 . 1-11 , and any unexpended funds from th is appropr iation may be used 

9 to provide tu ition assistance , recru iting , and retention incentives to e l ig ib le  members of the 

1 0  North Dakota national guard during the biennium beginning J u ly 1 ,  2019 ,  and end ing June 30 ,  

1 1  2021 .  

1 2  SECTION 1 1 .  EXEMPTION.  Any amounts carried over pursuant to section 11 of chapter 15  

1 3  of the 2017 Session Laws wh ich are unexpended as of J une 30 ,  201 9 ,  are not subject to 

1 4  sect ion 54-44 . 1-11 and are avai lable for payment of adjusted compensation to veterans. Any 

1 5  unexpended funds from th is appropriation must be transferred to the veterans' cemetery trust 

1 6  fund during the b iennium beg inning Ju ly 1 ,  2019 ,  and end ing J une 30 ,  2021 . 

1 7  SECTION 1 2 . EXEMPTION.  The amount of $300 , 000 from the strateg ic investment and 

1 8  improvements fund appropriated in the operating expenses l ine item in subd ivision 2 of 

1 9  sect ion 1 of chapter 15  of the 2017  Session Laws for mobi le repeaters and programming rad ios 

20 is not subject to sect ion 54-44 .1-11 and any unexpended funds from th is appropriat ion may be 

2 1  used to complete this project during the b ienn ium beg inning J u ly 1 ,  2019 ,  and ending June 30 ,  

22 2021 .  

23  SECTIO N  1 3 . EXEMPTION.  Any amounts carried over i n  t he  d isaster costs l ine item for 

24 grants to pol it ical subd ivisions for amounts requ ired to match federal do l lars on road grade 

25 raising projects and federal emergency rel ief fund ing pursuant to section 13 of chapter 15  of the 

26 2017 Session Laws which are unexpended as of June 30, 2019 ,  are not subject to section 

27 54-44 . 1-11 . Any unexpended funds from th is appropriation are avai lab le for these purposes 

28 during the biennium beg inning Ju ly 1 ,  2019 ,  and end ing J une 30 ,  2021 . 

29 SECTION 1 4. EXEMPTION.  The amount of $8 ,530 , 116 from the state d isaster rel ief trust 

30 fund appropriated in the d isaster costs l ine item in subd ivision 2 of sect ion 1 of chapter 15  of the 

3 1  2017 Session Laws is not subject t o  section 54-44 . 1-11 and any unexpended funds from th is 
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1 appropriation may be used to provide the requ i red state share for the pu rposes of reimburs ing 

2 costs under section 37-17 . 1-27 dur ing the bienn ium beg inn ing J u ly 1, 2019, and ending 

3 June 30, 2021 . 

4 SECTION 1 5. EMERGENCY. Sections 4 and 5 and the camp G rafton expansion and 

5 tu ition , recruit ing, and retention l ine items in subdivision 1 of sect ion 1 of th is Act are declared to 

6 be an emergency measu re .  
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N D LA, H GVA - Hart, Carmen 

From: 

Sent: 

N O LA, Intern 09 - O 'Ne i l l , Seth 

Fr iday, Ma rch 01, 2019 4:00 PM 

To: 

Cc: 

-Grp-N D LA House Government & Vetera ns Affa i rs 

N O LA, H GVA - H a rt, Carmen 

Subject: 

Attachments: 

FW: N D  Veterans Cemetery B u r i a l  i nfo 

SB 2 195 Bu ria l s  b roken down.x l sx 

He l lo ,  

P l ease see the attached informat ion .  

Tha n k  You, 

Seth O' Ne i l l  

I ntern - N D  Legis l at ive Counc i l  

Fo rt U n io n  Room 

House Hea lth & H uman  Se rvices Comm ittee 

House Government  & Vetera ns  Affa i rs Comm ittee 

Ema i l :  i ntern9@nd .gov 

Phone :  328-3204 

-----O rig i n a l  Message-----

F ro m :  She ldon ,  Jay G MAJ USARMY NG N DARNG (USA) [ma i l to : jay .g . she ldo n .m i l@ma i l .m i l ]  

Sent :  Fr iday, Ma rch 01 ,  2019 2 : 59 PM 

To : N O LA, I ntern 09  - O ' Ne i l l ,  Seth < i nte rn9@nd .gov> 

S ubject :  ND Vete ra ns  Cemete ry Bu ria l i n fo 

* * * * *  CAUTION :  Th is ema i l  or ig inated from an  outs ide sou rce .  Do not c l i ck  l i n ks o r  open  attachments u n less you know 

they a re safe . * * * * *  

House GVA, 

Attached you w i l l  fi nd the b rea kdown of the buri a l s  at the  Vete ra ns  Cemetery back to 2010 .  

We a re work ing to gather info to add ress add itio na l  q uest ions .  

MAJ J ay  G .  She ldon 

N DNG J -5/9 

Strategic P l ans  and  Pol icy Office r 

141 M E B  S2 

0: 701-333-2 172 

C :  701-426-2297 

1 



I N FORMATION FOR SB2195 

NORTH DAKOTA VETERANS CEMETERY BURIAL STATISTICS 

YEAR VETERAN SPOUSE DEPENDENT 

2010 272 

2011 291  

2012 316  

2013 355 

2014 3 17 

2015 328 

2016 294 

2017 3 10 

2018 337 

TOTALS 2820 

125 4 

131  4 

135 0 

150 0 

149 2 

191  4 

188 2 

191  6 

205 1 

1465 23 

VETERANS SPOUSE DEPENDENT 

AVG/ YEAR 313 163 3 



N O LA, H GVA - Hart, Ca rmen 

From:  

Sent: 
N OLA, Intern 09 - O 'Ne i l l ,  Seth 

Monday, Ma rch 11, 2019 2 : 12  PM 
To: 

Subject: 
N OLA, H GVA - Ha rt, Carmen; -Grp -NOLA House Government & Vetera ns Affa i rs 

FW: House GVA 

He l l o ,  

P l ea se see the message below from MAJ Jay  G. She ldon .  

Tha n ks, 

Seth O' Ne i l l  

I nte rn - N D  Leg i s l a t ive Counc i l  

Fo rt U n ion  Room 

House Hea l th & H u m a n  Se rv ices  Comm ittee 

Hou se Government & Vete ra n s  Affa i rs Comm ittee 

E m a i l :  i ntern9@nd .gov 

Phone :  328-3204 

-----0 r ig i  na  I Message-----

F ro m :  She ldon ,  J ay  G M AJ USARMY NG N DARNG (USA) [ma i lto : jay.g . she ldon . m i l @ m a i l . m i l ]  

S en t :  Monday, M a rc h  1 1, 2019  2 : 1 1  PM 

To : N OLA, I ntern 09 - O ' Ne i l l , Se th  < i nte rn9 @nd .gov> 

S ubject :  House GVA 

* * * * *  CAUTION :  Th i s  ema i l  o rig i nated from a n  outs ide sou rce .  Do not c l i ck l i n ks o r  open  attachments un less you know 

they a re safe . * * * * *  

M r. Cha i rma n a n d  Mem bers o f  the House GVA, 

Be low a re responses to you r  q u est ions  that ca me up d u ring  the hea r ing on SB 2 195  rega rd ing  the bu ri a l  costs fo r 

spouses  a nd  q ua l ify i ng  dependents .  We have i nc l uded some add it io n a l  i nfo rmat ion  that  we thought may be he lpfu l a s  

we l l .  

1 .  W h a t  does t h e  $550 cove r? Th i s  i s  a bu ri a l  fee fo r a spouse o r  q u a l if ied dependent  a nd  i s  used t o  support the 

ope rat ions  and ma i ntena nce of the No rth Da kota Vete ra ns  Cemete ry ( N DVC) . The N DVC does not cha rge a fee fo r 

e l ig i b l e  se rv ice mem bers beca u se it receives a payment of $780 per  service member  ( amount cha nges each 1 October) 

a nd a headstone from the  Vete ra ns  Adm i n istrat ion (VA) . The $780 i s  pa rt of the base budget fo r the operations and 

m a i ntenance of the  cemete ry. 

2. How did we come to the a mount of $550? The fee i s  ba sed u pon  what other  states vete ra ns '  cemeteries cha rge as 

we l l  a s  p rivate cemeter ies in No rth  Da kota . Bu r ia l fees va ry from $ 0 .00 to $762 at  state vete ra n ' s  cemete r ies .  

G ene ra l ly speak i ng, a p rivate cemete ry i n  North Da kota c ha rges i n  excess of o u r  $550 fee .  O u r  fee was set to be 

cons i stent with other vete ra ns '  cemete ries and com petit ive with p r ivate cemete r ies i n  N o rth  Da kota . Beca use th is fee is 

pa rt of o u r  base l i n e  budget ing p rocess, a ny reduct ion i n  the fee wou l d  have to be off-set by a nother  revenue sou rce . 

3 .  What i s  the  $550 used fo r? Th is  fee provides fu nd ing fo r the operat io ns  a nd  ma i ntenance of the Cemete ry such as  

equ ipment  use ,  pe rsonne l  sa l a ry costs, a nd consuma b les .  As noted a bove, we a re re imbu rsed from the VA at a rate of 

1 
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$780 fo r e l ig ib le vete ra n bur i a l s .  Th is  a mount, coup led with spousa l a nd e l ig ib le  dependent b u ri a l s  ($550 fee) ,  a long 

with state Genera l  a nd spec i a l  fund i ng, p rovide the fund i ng needed to operate the cemetery .  

We sta nd ready to p rov ide mo re i nformat ion a nd answer a ny fu rther  quest ions at futu re hea r ings .  

MAJ Jay G .  She ldon 

NDNG J-5/9 

Strateg ic P l ans  and  Po l i cy Officer  

141 MEB 52 

0 :  701-333-2 172 

C :  701-426-2297 
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SB 2195 - Government and Veterans Affairs Conference April 11 th, 2019 

Conference Com m ittee Cha i rman  and  Government and  Vete ra ns  Affa i rs Confe rence Com m ittee 

Members, 

I ,  Major Gene ra l  A l  Doh rman n , North Da kota Nat io n a l  Gua rd Adjuta nt  Genera l , want  to p rovide 

add it io n a l  i nfo rmat ion a n d  c la rificat ion on SB  2 195 .  My pr imary concerns  a re with fund i ng of the bur i a l s  

a nd  im pacts of p rovi d i ng th i s  benefit fo r a restr icted per iod of  t ime .  

I have attached a sp readsheet that  conta i n s  the last n i n e  yea r average fo r bur i a l s  at the  N D  State 

Vetera n s  Cemetery with a specific brea kout for the last th ree yea rs .  You w i l l  notice the n u m be r  of 

bu ria l s  have bee n  on a steady i ncrease ove r the yea rs .  In com pa rison to the n i n e  yea r ave rage, the 

average of the last th ree yea rs shows a n  on  average i ncrease of 32 bur ia l s .  We a nt ic ipate th i s  t rend  w i l l  

cont i n ue .  

Add it ion a l ly, t h e  fund i ng  that i s  cu rrent ly a l located i n  SB2 195 i s  not suffic ient t o  pay t h e  costs o f  the 

projected bu ri a l s  fo r the 2019-2 1 b ienn i um .  Based o n  the th ree yea r  ave rage and the growth trend  we 

fo recast that  the next b ie n n i um  wou ld  req u i re at least $2 10K to fu l ly fund  the benefit .  

I f  the fu nd i ng  ca n not be i nc reased an amendment to the l a nguage of the b i l l  to cha nge the term 

"pay ing" to "defray ing"  the costs i s  req uested .  This wou ld  a l low me  the ab i l ity to manage the benefit 

equ ita b ly without r isk of exceed ing the a ppropriated funds .  I f  fu nd i ng  were to be exceeded it w i l l  

req u i re a req uest to  the emergency comm iss ion to  cover t he  a bove a nd  beyond a mount .  

I am a lso concerned that the fund i ng  fo r th i s  exp i res at the  end  of the 2019-2 1 b ie n n i um .  I be l ieve that  i f  

it is the  i ntent  of the legis l ature to offe r th i s  benefit to e l ig ib le  spouses and dependents that  the 

legis l a tu re shou ld a l so make it endu ring and not l im ited to the next b ie n n i um .  

F i n a l ly, t o  c l a rify t h e  Cemete ry budget. A lthough t h e  N D  Vetera ns  Cemetery h a s  t h e  a uthority fo r nea r ly 
$ 1M most of those funds  come from federa l  gra nts and re imbu rsements or  specia l fu nds .  In the OTAG 

budget fo r 2019-2 1, N D  State Vetera n's Cemete ry w i l l  rece ive rough ly $ 127K i n  gene ra l  fu nds .  A more 

deta i l ed  budget is be low. 

Governor' s  Recommendat ion 2019-2 1 :  

Genera l  F u nd s  $ 127,630 

Specia l F unds  854, 220 

Tota l 2019-2 1 $ 981,850 

Tha n k  you fo r you r  t ime a nd  we w i l l  be happy to sta nd  fo r add it io n a l  q uest ions .  



IN FORMATION FOR SB2195 

NORTH DAKOTA VETERANS CEMETERY BURIAL STATISTICS 

YEAR VETERAN SPOUSE DEPENDENT 

2010 272 125 4 

2011 291 131  4 

2012 316  135  0 PAST 9-YEAR A VERAGE ANNUAL TOTAL B I ENN IUM TOTAL 

2013 355 150 0 VETERANS SPOUSE DEPENDENT 

2014 317  149 2 AVG/ YEAR 313 163 3 

2015 328 191 4 

2016 294 188 2 Spouse/Dependent Average fees: $91,300.00 $182,600.00 

2017 310 191 6 PAST 3-YEAR A VERAGE 

2018 337 205 1 VETERANS SPOUSE DEPENDENT 

AVG/ YEAR 314 195 3 

TOTALS 2820 1465 23 Spouse/Dependent Average fees: $108,900.00 $217,800.00 

* *Spouse/Dependent Bur ia l  Fee $550.00**  
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P repa red by the Legis lative Counci l staff fo r \l- � { 
Senato r Vedaa 

f\ .,\ Ap ri l  1 1 , 201 9  f-t'  

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO . 2 1 95 

That the House recede f rom its amendments as p rinted on e 1 1 62 � Senate Jou rna l 
a nd pages 1 206 and 1 207 of the House Jou rna l and that Eng rosse enate Bi l l  No . 21 95 be 
amended as fo l l ows: 

I? ff", Ofl'­
Page 1 ,  l ine 5, rep l ace "$250,000" with "$�' 

Page 1 ,  l ine 6, rep l ace "paying" with "defraying" 

Renumbe r acco rding l y  

Page No, 1 1 9.0933.02002 
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